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We, at Universal Insurance Company Limited recognize the 
importance of satisfying our customers by consistently providing 
quality insurance service in accordance with their needs and 
expectations. We strive to be competent partner of our customers 
against insured perils.

      



We, strive to provide our customers cost effective insurance cover by 
continually increasing the productivity of our employees. To increase 
productivity, we conduct regular training programs during which 
employees are assessed and allocated a career path in accordance with 
their performance.

We diligently follow the applicable laws ensure strict compliance by 
conducting regular internal audit and educating our employees about 
the law. 

We try to improve our services by continually assessing our systems 
and procedures bases  on customers and team feedback. We strive to 
maintain a customer focused approach by ensuring that our service is 
delivered to the customer on time, according to the customer required 
specifications and with in our stipulated Cost.
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Principal Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Internal Auditor

Auditors

Legal Adviosor

Board of Directors

Universal Insurance House
63-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore, 54000
Pakistan 
Ph: 042-37353453-37353458
Fax: 042-37230326
Web: www.uic.com.pk
Email: info@uic.com.pk

M/s. Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
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Phone # 042-37235081-82 Fax: # 042-37358817
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Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
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Rana Muhammad Aamir Zulfiqar (Advocate)

Chairman

Chief Executive

Mr. Amir Raza

Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed
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BOARD AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES
Board  Committees:

i) Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr.  Haroon Ahmed Zuberi

   

Chairman

  

Mr.  Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak 

  

Member

  

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

    

Member

  

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Member
Mr. Liaqat Ali Shaukat

  

Secretary

 

ii) Investment Committee

 
 

Mr.  Haroon Ahmed Zuberi

  

Chairman

  

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

    

Member

  

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik

   

Member

  

Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed

    

Member/Secretary

 

 

iii) Audit Committee

 
 

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik

   

Chairman

  

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi

   

Member

  

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

  

Member

  

Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed

   

Member

  

Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch.

   

Secretary

 

Management Committees:

 

iv) Underwriting, Reinsurance & Co-Insurance Committee;

 
 

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik

   

Chairman

  

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

    

Member

  

Mr. Muhammad Alyas

    

Member/  Secretary

  

v) Claims Settlement Committee;

  
 

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi

   

Chairman

  

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

    

Member

  

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

  

Member

  

Mr. Amir Raza

     

Member

   

Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch.

   

Secretary

   
 

vi) Risk Management &  Compliance Committee

 
 

Mr.  Gohar Ayub Khan Chairman
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member

Independent
Non-Executive
Executive
Independent

Independent
Non-Executive
Executive (CEO)
Independent
Chief  Financial Officer 

 

Independent
Independent
Non-Executive
Non-Executive

Independent
Executive

 

Independent
Executive
Non-Executive

Executive
Non-Executive

Mr. Amir Raza Member
Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Member
Mr. Muhammad Alyas Secretary
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stNotice is hereby given that the 61  Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of The Universal 
Insurance Company Limited will be held on Friday April 30, 2021 at 10:30 A.M. at the registered office of the 
Company at Universal Insurance House, 63-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore to transact the following 
business:-

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on May 21, 2020 at 
Lahore.           

2. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the annual audited accounts of the Company for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 and reports of the directors and auditors thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for the year ending December 31, 2021 and to fix their remuneration. The Board 
on recommendation of Audit Committee of the company has recommended the appointment of M/s. 
Junaidy Shoaib Asad Chartered Accountants as external auditor for the year 2021 being eligible, 
have offered themselves for re-appointment.  

B. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

    By Order of the Board

    (Liaqat Ali Shaukat)
Dated: April 08, 2021      Company Secretary 

stNOTICE OF 61  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name of 
shareholder

CNIC No. Folio No./ CDC 
Account No.

Contact No. Email Address 

1- Considering the situation on the spread of the COVID-19 and to protect the wellbeing of 
shareholders, the Company has decided to facilitate its shareholders by also allowing the 
shareholders to attend the meeting through video link. For this, the shareholders are requested to 
register themselves by sending an email along with the following particulars at info@uic.com.pk 
before close of business hours on April 26, 2021.

The shareholders can also provide their comments/ questions for the proposed agenda items of the 
AGM at the email address info@uic.com.pk.

2- The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 23, 2021 to April 30, 2021 
(both days inclusive). Transfer received in order at the office of the Company Share Registrar M/s. 
Hameed Majeed Associates, H.M House, 7-Bank Square Lahore up to the close of business on April 
22, 2021 will be considered in time to attend and vote at the meeting.

NOTES:
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3- A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/ her proxy to 
attend and vote instead of him/ her. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the 
Registered Office of the Company duly stamped, signed and witnessed not later than 48 hours before 
the meeting. A member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy. 

4- CDC shareholders are requested to bring their original CNIC card, Account, Sub account numbers and 
participant's Number in Central Depository Company (CDC) for identification purpose for attending the meeting. 
In case of Corporate entity, the Board of Director's resolution/ Power of attorney with specimen signature of the 
nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

5- Shareholders are requested to immediately notify shares registrar of the company promptly of any change in 
their addresses, if any and submit copy of valid CNIC if not submitted yet.

6- Form of proxy is appended to the annual report in both English and Urdu languages and can be 
downloaded from the Company's website.

7- The audited financial statements of the company for the year ended December 31, 2020 have been 
placed on the company website www.uic.com.pk

8- Members who desire to receive annual financial statements and notice of annual general meeting of 
the company through email in future are hereby requested to convey their consent to company 
secretary at email address info@uic.com.pk via email on a standard request form which is available 
on company website. It is the responsibility of the member to timely update of any change in their 
registered email address. Members can request a hard copy of Audited Financial Statements which 
shall be provided free of cost within seven days from the date of requisition.

9- As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to 
replace its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date 
notified by the Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of this 
Act i.e, May 30, 2017.
The Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any 
of the brokers or investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form, 
this will facilitate them in many ways, including safe custody and sale of shares, any time they want, 
as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing regulations of the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange.

10- As per provision of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend which has been declared 
by a company but has not been paid or claimed within time stipulated in Section 242 and Dividend 
Regulations, the Company shall within 15 days of the expiry of the said period transfer the total 
amount of dividend which remains unpaid or unclaimed to a separate profit bearing account to be 
called the unpaid dividend account. In this regard, the Company is in the process of opening separate 
bank account to be termed as “Unpaid Dividend Account”.

11- Consent for Video Conference Facility

Pursuant to section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, if the Company receives consent from 
members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing at geographical location, to 
participate in the meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to the date of 
meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such 
facility in that city. The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility 
at least 5 days before the date of general meeting. In order to avail this facility please provide 
following information to the registered office of the Company:

I/We ________________ of ________________ being a member of The Universal Insurance Co. 
Ltd., holder of _____________Ordinary Share(s) as per Folio/ CDC Account No.  ___________ 
hereby opt for video conference facility at ________________.  Signature of Member(s) 
___________________
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     (Rupees in million)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Written Gross Premium 141 139 64 28 36 45 68 115 295 464

Net Insurance Premium 67 68 33 12 26 28 35 99 211 292

Net Insurance Claim 36 (20) 2 (9) (9) (56) 2 54 102 143

Investment 475 440 443 372 322 187 157 138 135 135

Underwriting results (62) 7 (39)

 

(39)

          

(23)

         

83 0.30 (18) 1.4 (2)

(Loss)/ Profit before Taxation (109) 4 19 45 71 131 (41) (87) (66) (110)

(Loss)/ Profit after Taxation (88) 2 16 41 69 130 (46) 89 (66) (65)

Paid-up Share Capital 500 500 500 500 416 416 370 300 300 300

Cash and Banks 9 46 26 90 6 108 122 160 62 130

Total Assets 986 954 927 921 805 784 847 935 913 1069

Total Equity 830 822 808 780 644 311 118 78 143 208

EPS  (Rs) (1.76) 0.05 0.32 0.98 1.67 3.5 (1.34) (2.97) (2.21) (4.20)

Sales Tax on Services/ FED (Paid)

Add: Facultative inward premium

Total gross written premium for the year

-Sindh Revenue Board

-Punjab Revenue Authority

Summary of Sales Tax on Services/ FED on account of

Gross Written Premium of the Company-Province-wise

2020 2019

Sales Tax on 

Services / FED

Gross Written 

Premium Plus 

Admin. Surcharge

Sales Tax on 

Services / FED

Gross Written 

Premium Plus 

Admin. Surcharge

- - - - - - - - - -  Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - 

12,7321,686

10,562

1,371

1,383

223

11,714

1,018

127,216128,254

139,149140,986

1,523

163

11,9331,606
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, I have pleasure in presenting the 61st Annual Report and performance 
review of The Universal Insurance Company Limited for the year ended 31 December, 2020.

Company Performance:

The Gross Written Premium of the Company during the year 2020 remained almost the same as in 2019. 
However, the company has suffered losses after taxation amounting to Rs. (87.845) million on account of 
increase in claim expense, increase in management expense and losses of associated company. 

Future Outlook:

To recover the losses of the year 2020 we are planning to set up branch network in order to capture the market 
business and at the same time we are hopeful that our Co-insurance and Facultative business will enhance in 
the coming year. Thus, we are anticipating improvement in our financials for the coming year.

Acknowledgement:

I wish to express my sincere appreciation to our valued shareholders, clients, Reinsurers, SECP & financial 
institutions whose cooperation and support over the year has further strengthened our market image.

April 02, 2021
Lahore

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Principal Activities of the Company

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Operating Results:

2020 2019

Gross premium 140,986

 

139,149

         

Net premium 67,199

 

68,115

           

Net claims (35,774)

 

19,576

           

Underwriting results (62,386)

          

7,287

             

Investment & Other Income 22,536

            

25,106

           

(Loss)/ Profit before taxation (109,479)

        

4,421

             

(Loss)/ Profit after taxation for the year (87,845)

          

2,335

             

(Loss)/ Earnings per share (1.76)

               

0.05

               

Review of Operating Results:

Information Technology (IT)

The Universal Insurance Company Limited was incorporated as a Public Limited Company in Pakistan in 1958.

Our Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). The principal activity of the Company is to

underwrite general insurance business in Pakistan.

We on behalf of the Board of Director would like to present 61st Annual Report of the Company along with

audited financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2020.

The operating financial results of the company for the year ended 31 December, 2020 are stated below.

----------Rupees in '000----------

The principal risks and uncertainties have been properly disclosed in the note 40 forming part of annual

accounts.

M/s. PACRA has maintained IFS rating to A- (stable) in view of improvement in the financial indicators of the

company.

Our IT system has been further upgraded to meet the new IT related requirements encountered during the

year. Most of the statutory reports are now generated through our IT system.

Dividend

Due to accumulated losses, the directors have not recommended dividend for the

 
year 2020.

IFS Rating

The Gross Written Premium of the Company has slightly increased over the last year whereas net claim of the

company have increased drastically as compared to last financial year. The major reason for this significant

enhancement in net claim is on account of major reinsurance recoveries made during the last financial year.

Further during the year under review the loss from associated company has sizable increased which adversely

impacted on the profitability of the company as compared to last year along with the increase in management

expense of the company .The financial indicators also reflect decrease in investment & other income over the

corresponding period.
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Statement of Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

(k)

Related Party Transactions

 

Financial statements have been prepared by the company in accordance with the International Accounting

Standards (IAS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) or any other regulation or law as

applicable in Pakistan. The departure there from, if any, is disclosed adequately.

The company has applied consistently appropriate accounting policies in preparation of the financial

statements and accounting estimates are on the basis of prudent and reasonable judgment.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored

throughout the year. Internal controls and their implementation are reviewed continuously by the Internal

Audit department and any weakness in controls is timely addressed.

Four directors of the Company have acquired certification under the Director’s Training Program (DTP) and 

three directors meets the criteria of eligibility for exemption from certificate.

There are no significant doubts upon Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Code of Corporate Governance. 

Key operating and financial data for the last ten years in summarized form is annexed to this annual report.

There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as

at 31st December, 2020 except as disclosed in the corresponding notes in the financial statements.

The corporate laws, rules and regulations framed there under spell out the overall functions of the Board of

Directors of the company. The Board is fully aware of its corporate responsibilities as envisaged under the

Code of Corporate Governance, prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is

pleased to certify that:

The financial statements, prepared by the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its

operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

The related party transactions are approved or ratified by the Board Audit Committee and the Board of 

Directors.

ISO Certification

Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

The Company received ISO 9001:2015 certification from M/s. Lloyd's Register-LRQA, Karachi since May 17,

2003. M/s. Lloyd's Register-LRQA, Karachi renewed Company's certification ISO 9001:2015 on June 04, 2019

till October 18, 2021 which exhibits that Company meets the requirement of standard and maintains

satisfactory level of implementation of ISO-Quality Management System.

The value of investment of provident fund based on their unaudited accounts is Rs. 4.900 million  as on 31 

December, 2020.

Holding Company

Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited, incorporated in Pakistan, is a holding Company by way of direct ownership of

85.96% shares.
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7

Male 6

Female 1

2

3

1

1

Board Performance Evaluation

- Achieving corporate goals and objectives as defined in the Company's vision and mission statements.

-

-

-

Board of Directors' Meetings:

No. of Meetings

Name of Directors Attended

Lt. Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 2

Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 6

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan 6

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak 2

Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed 2

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik 5

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi 1

Mr. Mushtaq Ahmad Khan - FCA 0

Dr. Shaheen Kuli Khan Khattak 3

Mr. Pervez I. Khan 0

Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak 3

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak 3

Mr. Sikandar Kuli Khan Khattak 3

The Directors of the Company were elected at the Annual General Meeting held on May 21, 2020 for a term of

three years commencing from May 22, 2020. During the year, Six (6) Board meetings were held. The number

of meetings attended by each Director is given hereunder :

Total number of directors

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend some of the Board meetings due to their

other engagements.

Trainings and upgradation of knowledge and skills of directors

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board is in line with the requirements of the CCG Regulations. The composition of the

Board is as follows:

Independent Director

(Retired from Board on May 21, 2020)

(Retired from Board on May 21, 2020)

(Retired from Board on May 21, 2020)

(Retired from Board on May 21, 2020)

(Retired from Board on May 21, 2020)

(Retired from Board on May 21, 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Executive Director

The evaluation of Board's role of oversight and its effectiveness is appraised by the Board itself. The main

areas of focus are, but are not limited to, the following :

Strategy formulation and dissemination of directors to the management for sustainable planning and 

operation; and 

Evaluation of Board's Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities as per 

defined terms of reference.

(Resigned from Board on 31-12-2020)

Female Director

One casual vacancy occurred during the year 2020 due to resignation of Lt. Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

(Director/ Chairman) which was duly filled by Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak.
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Audit Committee

- Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman

- Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Member

- Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member

- Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

- Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Chairman

- Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member

- Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member

- Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Member

Investment Committee

- Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Chairman

- Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member

- Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member

- Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Member

- Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Member/ Secretary

Underwriting, Re-Insurance & Co-Insurance Committee

- Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman

- Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member

- Mr. Muhammad Alyas Member/ Secretary

Audit Committee comprising of four members, two of whom are non-executive directors and two independent

directors. The chairman of the committee is an independent director. Four meetings of audit committee were

held during the year.

The Board's Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of following members and the 

Chairman of the committee is an Independent director. Two meetings were held during the year.

The Board of Directors, in compliance with the Code, has constituted following Board and Management

committees which performs according to the terms of reference determined by the Board of the company and

which conforms to the requirements of the code

This Committee formulates the underwriting policy and regularly reviews the underwriting and premium policies

of the company and ensures adequate reinsurance arrangements for the insurance company's business. The

committee is consisting of following members. Four meetings were held during the year.

Board and Management Committees

Investment Committee meets on quarterly basis to review the investment portfolio. The Board's Investment

Committee comprises of the following members. Four meetings were held during the year.
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Claims Settlement Committee

- Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Chairman

- Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member

- Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member

- Mr. Amir Raza Member

Risk Management & Compliance Committee

- Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chairman

- Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member

- Mr. Amir Raza Member

- Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Member

Remuneration of Directors

Health, Safety and Environment

Corporate Social Responsibility

Internal Audit Function

This committee oversees the activities of the risk management function of the Company and makes

appropriate recommendations to the Board to mitigate probable risks falling within the purview of the risk

management function. This Committee is consisting of following members. Four meetings were held during the

year.

The Board understands its responsibility towards smooth functioning of internal financial controls and

continuously strives to achieve the best practices through its regular governance.

Claim Settlement Committee devises the claim settling policy of the Company. It oversees the claims position

of the Company and ensures that adequate claims reserves are maintained. The committee is consisting of

following members. Four meetings were held during the year.

The Universal Insurance Company Limited has an independent internal audit function who has suitably

designed internal controls to safeguard financial and operational reporting of the Company. The Board Audit

Committee quarterly reviews the appropriateness of resources and authority of this function. The head of

Internal Audit functionally reports to the audit committee. The Board audit committee approves the audit plans,

based on an annual and quarterly assessment of the operating areas.

The Internal Audit function carry's out reviews on the financial, operational and compliance controls, and

reports its findings functionally to the Board Audit Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive.

The Company has a formal policy in this regard in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the CCG

Regulations. The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board itself. However, in accordance

with the Code of Corporate Governance, it is ensured that no Director takes part in deciding his own

remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration to non-executive directors except fee for attending the

meetings in line with the Board approval. For information on remuneration of Directors and CEO in FY 2020,

please refer note 32 to the Financial Statements.

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety and environment (HSE) to ensure

the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate.

The Company considers social, environmental and ethical matters in the context of the overall business

environment. The Company is committed to make conscious effort to consider and balance the interest of all

stakeholders, in particular the community in which we live and who form our customer base.
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Statement of Compliance

Pattern of Shareholding

Communication with Stakeholders

Corporate Briefing Session

Donation

Trading in Company's Shares

Appointment of Auditors

Future Outlook

Acknowledgement

The Company focuses on the importance of the communication with the stakeholders. The annual, half yearly

and quarterly reports are placed on company's website (www.uic.com.pk) and distributed as specified in the

Companies Act, 2017. The activities of the company are updated on its website on timely basis.

The pattern of shareholding is separately annexed in the report at page No. 79.

No trading in the shares of the Company was carried out by the Directors, Chief Executive, Principal Officer,

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, executives, their spouses and minor children during the financial

year ended December 31, 2020.

The auditors M/s. Junaidy Shoaib Asad, Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, offer themselves for

re-appointment. The Board of Directors endroses recommendation of the Audit Committee for their re-

appointment as auditors of the Company for the financial year ending on December 31, 2021 to the

shareholders for approval. 

In the forthcoming financial year starting from January, 2021 we are anticipating improvement in all sectors of

business and in line with this, we are also planning to set up a branch network to capture the potential market

business and moreover, as a result of this we are very much hopeful the company would be in a position to

recover its losses suffered during the last year. 

We would like to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Reinsurance Company

Ltd., State Bank of Pakistan, Other Reinsures and Co-insurers for their continued cooperation and guidance

through-out the year and our valued clients for their continued patronage extended to us.

Corporate Briefing Session was held for shareholders and analysts on December 10, 2020 as per requirement

of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Company's Senior Management and shareholders attended the

session. .

In 2020, the Company donated Rs. 58 thousand to Waqaf-e-Kuli Khan Trust.

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is separately annexed in the report at page 

No. 24.

Date: April 02, 2021

Place: Lahore

Chief Executive Officer

           For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

    Chairman

Gohar Ayub Khan Raza Kuli Khan Khattak
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Statement of Compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 &

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 

Name of Insurer: The Universal Insurance Company Limited(the Company)

Year Ended: December 31, 2020

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for 
Insurers, 2016 (the Code) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, 
whereby an insurer is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and 
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (CCG 2019).

The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code and CCG 2019 in the following 

manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a) Male: Six

b) Female: One

2. The Company encourages representation of independent, non-executive directors and 

directors representing minority interest on its Board of Directors (the Board). At present the 

Board includes:

Category
 

Names

Independent Director
 

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik
Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi

 
Executive Director

 
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Khalid Kuli Khan Khattak

Female Director Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed

The independent directors meets the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code 

and CCG 2019.

Fraction (0.33) related to the requirement for number of independent directors is less than 

0.5 and therefore, has not rounded up as one.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven 

listed companies, including this Company. 

4. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has 

defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a development financial institution 

or a non-banking financial institution or, being a member of stock exchange, has been 

declared as a defaulter by the stock exchange. 

5. One casual vacancy occurring on the board on December 31, 2020was filled up by the 

directors within 90 days.
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6. The Company has prepared a “Code of conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps 

have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting 

policies and procedures. 

7. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and 

significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of 

particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or 

amended has been maintained. 

8. All powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, 

including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of 

employment of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), other executive directors and the key 

officers, have been taken by the Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and CCG 2019.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 

director elected by the Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every 

quarter. The board has complied with the requirements of the Act and CCG 2019 with 

respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board. Written notices 

of the Board meetings, along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least 

seven days before the meeting.

10. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 

accordance with the Act and CCG 2019.

11. The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively 

implemented at all levels within the Company. The Company has adopted and complied 

with all necessary aspects of internal controls given in the Code.

12. Four of the directors have acquired certification regarding the “Directors' Training Program” 

(DTP) conducted by the local institutions that meet the criteria specified by the Securities 

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Other three directors possess the 

minimum qualification and experience criteria for the exemption of DTP as stipulated in the 

Code.

13. No new appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of 

Internal Audit was made during the year. The Board had approved the remuneration of CFO, 

Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit Department.

14. The Directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements 

of the Code and CCG 2019 and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

15. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) and CFO before approval of the Board.

16. The directors, CEO and other executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the 
Company other than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.
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17. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of 
the Code and CCG 2019.

18. The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

Underwriting, Re-insurance & Co-Insurance Committee:

Name of the Member  Category  
Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik  Chairman  
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan  Member  
Mr. Muhammad Alyas

 
Member/ Secretary

 

Claims Settlement Committee:

Name of the Member Category  

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Chairman  

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member  
Mr.AhmedKuli Khan Khattak Member  
Mr. Amir Raza Member  
Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Secretary  

Risk Management & Compliance Committee:

Name of the Member Category  

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chairman  

Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member  
Mr. Amir Raza Member  
Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed Member  
Mr. Muhammad Alyas Secretary  

The functions of Nominations Committee are being performed by the Board.

19. The Board has formed the following Board Committees:

Ethics, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee:

Name of the Member Category  

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Chairman  
Mr. AhmedKuli Khan Khattak Member  
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member  
Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Member  
Mr. Liaqat Ali Shaukat

 
Secretary

 
Investment Committee:

Name of the Member Category  

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Chairman  
Mr. AhmedKuli Khan Khattak Member  
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Member  
Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik

 
Member

 
Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed

 
Member/ Secretary
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20. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of four members, of whom two are 
independent directors and two are non-executive directors. The chairman of the Committee 
is an independent director. The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Audit Committee:

Name of the Member Category  

Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik Chairman  

Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi Member  

Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak Member  
Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed Member  
Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch. Secretary  

21. The meetings of the Committees, except Ethics, Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee (EHR), were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Company and as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the aforesaid 
Committees have been formed, documented and advised to the Committees for 

stcompliance. The meetings of the Committees were not held in 1  quarter except EHR due to 
COVID-19 & Lockdown imposed by Government. The meetings were held subsequently in 
April 2020.

22. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function equipped with suitably qualified and 
experienced staff who are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and 
they are involved in the internal audit function on a regular basis. 

23. The CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal Audit 
possess such qualification and experience as is required under the Code. Moreover, the 
persons heading the underwriting, claims, reinsurance, risk management and grievance 
functions/ departments possess qualification and experience of direct relevance to their 
respective functions, as required under section 12 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 
(Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000):

Name of the Person  Designation  
Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan  Chief Executive Officer  
Mr. Amir Raza  Principal Officer  
Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed  Chief Financial Officer  
Mr. Muhammad Alyas  Compliance Officer  and  

Head of Reinsurance  
Mr. Liaqat Ali Shaukat

 
Company Secretary

 
Mr. Abdul Waheed Ch.

 
Head of Internal Audit

 
Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq

 
Head of Underwriting and 

 Risk Management
 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Ashraf

 
Head of Claims

 Mr. Aftab Rashid
 

Chief Information Security Officer 
& Head of Grievance Dept.

24. The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors 
approved by the Commission in terms of section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 
(Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000). The statutory auditors have confirmed that they have been 
given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan(ICAP) and are registered with Audit Oversight Board of 
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not
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Chairman

Date: April 02, 2021
Place: Lahore

Chief Executive Officer Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by 
ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative 
(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, 
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company.

25. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to 
provide other services and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.

26. The Board ensures that the investment policy of the Company has been drawn up in 
accordance with the provisions of the Code.

27. The Board ensures that the risk management system of the Company is in place as per the 
requirements of the Code.

28. The Company has set up a risk management function, which carries out its tasks as covered 
under the Code.

29. The Board ensures that as part of the risk management system, the Company gets itself 
rated from The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA), which is being used by its 
risk management function and the respective Committee as a risk monitoring tool. The 
rating assigned by PACRA on February 08, 2021is A- with Stable outlook. 

30. The Board has setup a grievance department, which fully complies with the requirements of 
the Code.

31. The Company has not obtained any exemption from SECP in respect of the requirements of 
the Code.

32. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the CCG 2019 
and all material requirements of the Code have been complied with.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of The Universal Insurance Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Code of Corporate Governance for 

Insurers, 2016

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 
2016 (both herein referred to as “the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of The 
Universal Insurance Company Limited (the 'Company') for the year ended December 31, 2020 
in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of 
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily 
to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 
Company to comply with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal 
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon 
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and 
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this 
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors 
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

Based on our review, except for non-holding of committee meetings including audit committee 
meeting during first quarter of the year owing to lock down in the country as a result of COVID-19 as 
disclosed in para 21 of the Statement of Compliance, nothing has come to our attention which 
causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the 
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations 
as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Junaidy Shoaib Asad
Chartered Accountants 

Lahore.
Dated: April 05, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE 
UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the annexed financial statements of The Universal Insurance Company Limited, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and 
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof 
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information 
required by the Insurance Ordinance,2000 (XXXIX of 2000) and the  Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in 
the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 
December 31, 2020 and of the loss, total comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

S. No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

Valuation, classification and impairment of 
investments

Refer notes 4.8, 7, 8 and 9 to the financial 
statements relating to valuation and 
impairment of investments. The Company's 
investment portfolio comprises of government 
debt securities, equity securities including 
investment in subsidiary, other fixed income 
securities and term deposits. The Company's 
investments represent 48% of the total assets.

We identified the valuation and impairment of 
investments as key audit matter because of 
the significance of investments and 
management's judgment involved in valuation 
and impairment.

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter 
included the following:

·Obta ined  an  unders tand ing ,  
evaluated the design and tested the 
operating effectiveness of controls 
des igned  f o r  va lua t i on  and  
impairment of investments.

·Assessed the methodology used and 
evaluated the valuation of debt 
securities using the market yield 
pricing methodology based on 
interpolation of relevant rates and 
valuation of equity securities by 
comparing the quoted prices of 
Pakistan Stock Exchange for the 
securities; 

1
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S. No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

·Evaluated the valuation assessment 
performed by the Company to identify 
any potential impairment in relation to 
its investments; and

·Assessed whether the Company's 
disclosures in relation to the valuation 
of investments are compliant with the 
relevant accounting requirements 
and the Companies Act, 2017.

Valuation of insurance/ reinsurance 

receivables

Refer note 4.10 and 11 to the financial 
statements relating to valuation of insurance/ 
reinsurance receivables.

The Company's insurance/reinsurance 
receivables represent 12% of its total assets.

Valuation of these receivables involves 
significant judgment regarding uncertainty in 
determining impairment / provisions.

We identified the valuation of insurance/ 
reinsurance receivables as a key audit matter 
as the estimation involves a significant degree 
of judgment.

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter 

included the following:

·Tested the accuracy of insurance / 
reinsurance receivables aging report, 
on a sample basis, by comparing 
individual balances in the report with 
underlying documentation to evaluate 
that the balances appearing in the 
ageing report were classified within 
appropriate ageing bucket; and

·Assessed the appropriateness of 
assumptions and estimates made by 
the management for the provision for 
impairment by comparing, on a 
sample basis, past experience and 
historical trends of collection, actual 
write offs and receipts and settlement 
from / with customers and reinsurer 
subsequent to the financial year end.

2

Valuation of claim liabilities

Refer contents of notes 4.4 and 24 of the 
financial statements for disclosures of related 
accounting policy and claims disclosures.

The Company's outstanding claims constitute 
23 percent of its total liabilities. Valuation of 
these outstanding claims involves significant 
management judgment regarding uncertainty 
in the estimation of claims payments and 
assessment of frequency and severity of 
claims. Outstanding claims are recognised on 
intimation of the insured event based on 
management judgment and estimation. The 
Company maintains provision for IBNR claims 
based on the advice of an independent 
Actuary. The actuarial valuation process 
involves significant judgment and the use of 
actuarial assumptions.

3 Our audit procedures in respect of this matter 
included the following:

·Obta ined  an  unders tand ing ,  
evaluated the design and tested the 
controls over the process of 
capturing, processing and recording 
of information related to the claims;

·Obta ined  an  unders tand ing ,  
evaluated the design and tested the 
controls related to recoveries from 
reinsurance arrangements;

·Evaluated whether the Company's 
actuarial methodologies used were 
consistent with prior years;

·Evaluated general pr inciples, 
actuarial assumptions and method 
adopted for actuarial valuations by the 
Actuary of the Company for 
determination of IBNR;
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S. No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

·Tested the completeness, accuracy 
and reliability of the underlying data 
utilized by Actuary in actuarial 
valuation;

·Tested claims transactions on sample 
basis with underlying documentations 
to evaluate whether the claims 
reported during the  year were 
recorded in accordance with the 
requirements of the Company's policy 
and insurance regulations;

·Considered the adequacy of  
Company's disclosures about the 
estimates used and the sensitivity to 
key assumptions; and

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter 
included the following:

·Discussed legal cases with the legal 
department to understand the 
management's view point and 
obtained and reviewed the litigation 
documents in order to assess the 
facts and circumstances;

·Obtained independent opinion of 
legal advisors dealing with such 
cases in the form of confirmations;

·Evaluated the legal cases in line with 
the requirements of IAS 37: 
Provisions, contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets; and

·The disclosures of legal exposures 
and provisions were assessed for 
completeness and accuracy.

·Assessed on a sample basis the 
reinsurer's share of claims against the 
term of the reinsurance contracts and 
the related recorded liabilities.

4. Contingencies

The Company is subject to litigations involving 
different courts, which require management to 
make assessment and judgments with 
respect to likelihood and impact of such 
litigations.

Management has engaged independent legal 
counsels on these matters.

The accounting for and disclosure of 
contingencies is complex and is a matter of 
significance in our audit because of the 
judgments required to determine the level of 
certainty on these matters.

The details of contingencies alongwith 
management's assessment are disclosed in 
note 22 to the financial statements.

5. Revenue recognition risk

Refer contents of notes 4.2, 4.23, 23 and 27 to 

the financial statements relating to revenue 

recognition risk.

The Company receives its revenue primarily 
from two main sources that is premiums and 
investment income.

We identified revenue recognition as a key 

audit matter as it is one of the key performance 

indicators of the Company and because of the 

potential risk that revenue transactions may 

not be recognised in the appropriate period.

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter 
included the following: 

·Obta ined  an  unders tand ing ,  
evaluated the design and tested the 
controls over the process of 
capturing, processing and recording 
of information related to premiums 
and investments income;

·Assessed the appropriateness of the 
Company's accounting policy for 
r eco rd ing  o f  p rem iums  and  
investments income in line with the 
r e q u i r e m e n t s  o f  a p p l i c a b l e  
accounting and reporting standards;
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S. No. Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

·Tested the policies on sample basis 
where premium was recorded close to 
the year end and subsequent to the 
year end, and evaluated that these 
were recorded in the appropriate 
accounting period; 

·Tested the investments income 
transaction on sample basis where 
investments income was recorded 
close to the year end and subsequent 
to the year end, and evaluated that 
these were recorded in  the 
appropriate period.

·Recalculated the unearned portion of 
premium income on sample basis and 
ensured that appropriate amount has 
been recorded as unearned premium 
reserve;and

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000) and Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

·Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

·Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

·Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

·Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 

2000(XXXIX of 2000) and the Companies Act,2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) The statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes 

thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 

2000),the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and 

returns;
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c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 

purpose of the Company's business; and

d) No zakat was deductible under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other matter paragraph

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2019 were audited by another auditor whose 

report dated April 29, 2020 expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Shoaib Ahmad 

Waseem.

Junaidy Shoaib Asad

Chartered Accountants

Lahore

Date: April 05, 2021



36

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
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2020 2019

Assets Note

Property and equipment 5 188,466 191,912
Investment property 6 30,660 26,177
Investments in associates 7 284,720 254,919
Investments
   - equity securities 8 134,987 130,736
   - debt securities 9 55,362 54,680
Loans and other receivables 10 35,063 32,844
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 11 122,451 122,692
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 24 26,175 26,203
Deferred commission expense 25 9,967 6,796
Deferred taxation 12 57,007 33,191
Taxation - payments less provisions 13 8,811 8,766
Prepayments 14 22,507 18,550
Cash and bank balances 15 9,332 46,376

Total Assets 985,508 953,842

Equity and Liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable to 
Company's equity holders

Authorised share capital
75,000,000 (2019: 75,000,000) ordinary shares 

of Rs.10 each 16 750,000 750,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 16 500,000 500,000

Capital reserves:
- share premium 17 13,824 13,824
- others 18 18
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 18 385,135 291,636

Fair value reserve on available-for-sale investments 313 280

(Accumulated loss) / Unappropriated profit (69,589) 16,356

Total Equity 829,701 822,114

Liabilities

Underwriting Provisions

Outstanding claims including IBNR 24 35,472 35,375
Unearned premium reserves 23 62,720 41,338
Unearned reinsurance commission 25 3,791 2,594
Long term deposits 19 62 388
Insurance / reinsurance payables 20 41,059 39,627
Unclaimed dividends 555 555
Other creditors and accruals 21 12,148 11,851

Total Liabilities 155,807 131,728

Total Equity and Liabilities 985,508 953,842

Contingencies and commitments 22

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 - - - Rupees in thousand - - -

PRINCIPAL OFFICER
Amir RazaRaza Kuli Khan Khattak

CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Gohar Ayub Khan Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed

DIRECTOR
Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

DIRECTOR
Ashfaq Ahmed

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
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2020 2019
Note

Net insurance premium 23 67,199 68,115

Net insurance claims 24 (35,774) 19,576

Net commission 25 (10,758) (11,981)

Insurance claims and expense (46,532) 7,595

Management expenses 26 (83,053) (68,423)

Underwriting results (62,386) 7,287

Investment income 27 9,754 13,634

Rental income 1,060 963

Other income 28 11,722 10,509

Other expenses 29 (4,432) (4,144)

Results of operating activities (44,282) 28,249

Share of loss of associates - net 7 (65,197) (23,828)

(Loss) / profit before taxation (109,479) 4,421

Income tax 30 21,634 (2,086)

(Loss) / profit after taxation (87,845) 2,335

(Loss) / earnings (after taxation) per share 31 (1.76) 0.05

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

- - - Rupee - - - 
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Loss) / profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Unrealised gain on available-for-sale investments

Impact of deferred taxation on remeasurement of

available-for-sale investments

Net share of other comprehensive income
/ (loss) of associates - net of taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2020 2019

(87,845) 2,335

46 63

(13) (18)

33 45

5 (50)

38 (5)

(87,807) 2,330

Rupees in thousand
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 500,000 13,824 18 282,051 235 11,981 808,109

Transfer from surplus on 

revaluation of buildings on 

account of incremental depreciation - - - (1,456) - 1,456 -

Deferred tax adjustment - - - 422 - - 422

.
Miscellaneous items of Associates

 accounted for under equity method - - - 10,619 - 634 11,253

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2019 - -

        

-

   

-

             

- 2,335 2,335

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the 
   year ended December 31, 2019 - - - - 45 (50) (5)

Total comprehensive income for the year

 ended December 31, 2019 - - - - 45 2,285 2,330

Balance as at December 31, 2019 500,000 13,824 18 291,636 280 16,356 822,114

Transfer from surplus on 

revaluation of buildings on 

account of incremental depreciation - - - (1,383) - 1,383 -

Deferred tax adjustment - - - 401 - - 401

Miscellaneous items of Associates
 accounted for under equity method - - - 94,481 - 512 94,993

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 - - - - - (87,845) (87,845)

Other comprehensive income for the year

ended December 31, 2020 - - - - 33 5 38

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the  year

ended December 31, 2020 - - - - 33 (87,840) (87,807)

Balance as at December 31, 2020 500,000 13,824 18 385,135 313 (69,589) 829,701

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Total

(Accumul-

ated 

loss) / 

unappro-

priated 

profit

Fair value

reserve on

available-

for-sale

investmentsOther 
Share 

premium 

Share 

capital

Capital Reserves

Surplus on 

revaluation  

of fixed 

assets

--------------------- ----------------- (Rupees in thousand) -------------------------------------------------
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

 2020 2019
Operating Cash Flows

a)   Underwriting activities

Insurance premium received    140,986    139,149 

Reinsurance premium paid    (56,367)    (53,377)

Claims paid    (50,430)      (4,827)

Reinsurance and other recoveries received      14,781      26,957 

Commission paid    (22,392)    (23,022)

Commission received      10,603        7,418 

Management expenses paid    (68,175)    (61,373)

Net cash (outflows) / inflows from underwriting activities (30,994) 30,925

b)   Other operating activities

Income tax paid      (1,839)      (1,037)

Other operating payments      (4,418)      (4,144)

Other operating receipts           332        1,403 

Loans and other receivables      (1,619)         (985)

Other payments - net      (6,279)    (10,302)

Net cash outflows from other operating activities (13,823) (15,065)

Total cash (outflows) / inflows from all operating activities (44,817) 15,860

Investment activities

Profit / return received        7,421        6,582 

Rental received        1,060           963 

Payment for investments  (136,688)    (15,913)

Proceeds from disposal / redemption of investments    136,056      15,000 

Fixed capital expenditure         (611)      (4,008)

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets           535        1,428 

Total cash inflows from investing activities 7,773 4,052

Cash flows from financing activities - -

Net cash (outflows) / inflows from all activities (37,044) 19,912

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year      46,376      26,464 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year        9,332      46,376 

Rupees in thousand



Reconciliation to statement of profit or loss 2020 2019

Operating cash flows (44,817) 15,860

Depreciation expense (3,752) (3,404)

Provision for doubtful insurance / reinsurance receivables (10,839) (3,785)

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 243 1,217

Increase in assets other than cash 43,390 8,221

Increase in liabilities (24,078) (12,910)

(39,853) 5,199

Other adjustments

Gain on investments - net 9,754 13,634

Share of loss of associates - net of taxation (65,197) (23,828)

Fair value gain on investment property 4,483 4,483

Assets written-off (14) -

Rental income 1,060 963

Profit on savings accounts 1,922 1884

(47,992) (2,864)

(Loss) / profit after taxation (87,845) 2,335

Definition of cash:

Cash for the purposes of statement of cash flows consists of:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash-in-hand 124 33

Bank accounts

Current  accounts 2,652 4,901

Savings accounts 6,556 41,442
9,208 46,343

Deposits maturing within 12 months - -

Total cash and cash equivalents 9,332 46,376

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Cash comprises of cash-in-hand and bank balances which are readily convertible to cash and

which are used in the cash management function on day-to-day basis.

Rupees in thousand
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 

1. Legal status and nature of business

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Accounting convention

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

(a)

The Company is a Subsidiary of Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited (the Holding Company),

which holds 42,981,788 (2019: 42,981,788) ordinary shares of the Company at the year-end.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards

comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Insurance Ordinance,

2000, Insurance Rules 2017 and Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017.

The Universal Insurance Company Limited (the Company) is a public limited company

incorporated in Pakistan on May 09, 1958 under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the

Companies Act, 2017). The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and is

engaged in non-life insurance business. The registered office of the Company is situated at

Universal Insurance House, 63 - Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore. Presently, the Company

is operating through one (2019: one) branch in Pakistan.

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Company's functional

and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been

rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also

requires management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting policies. The

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period

or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except

for investments at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments, which

are stated at fair value, held to maturity investments, which are stated at amortised cost, land

& buildings, which are stated at revalued amounts.

In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the

Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and Insurance Rules 2017 shall prevail.
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(b)

- Outstanding claims including IBNR notes 4.4 & 24

- Premium deficiency reserves notes 4.5

- Classification of investments notes 4.8, 7 ,8 & 9

- Taxation notes 4.12, 13 & 30

- Property and equipment notes 4.15 & 5

- Investment property notes 4.16 & 6

- Unearned premium reserves notes 4.17 & 23

- Provision for doubtful receivables notes 4.21 & 11

- Impairment in value of investments notes 4.25 & 7

3.

3.1

(a)

3.2

- Standards, amendments and interpretations

- IFRS 16, Leases (amendments)

- IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment (amendments)

- IFRS 17, Insurance contracts

- IFRS 9, Financial instruments

January 01, 2022

There are certain standards, amendments to the IFRSs and interpretations that are

mandatory for companies having accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020

but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company’s

operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements, except for the

following:

INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO

EXISTING STANDARDS

Effective date

January 01, 2023

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions

and estimates are significant to these financial statements or judgment was exercised in

application of accounting policies are as follows:

Standards, amendments and interpretations to approved accounting standards that

are effective in current year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRSs are effective for accounting

periods beginning on January 01, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any

significant effect on the Company’s operations (although they may affect the accounting for

future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial statements,

except for the following:

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors is applicable on accounting periods beginning

on or after January 1, 2020. The amendments are intended to make the definition of

materiality in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept

of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to

make materiality judgements when preparing their general purpose financial statements in

accordance with IFRS Standards.

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to

the Company’s financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the

following dates:

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the Company

(accounting period 

beginning on or after)

January 01, 2023*

- IAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

(amendments) 

June 01, 2020

January 01, 2022

* The company has opted temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 as allowed by

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are

predominantly connected with insurance. Further details / disclosure required to opt for

tmporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are given in Notes 35 & 39 to these

financial information.
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3.3

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

4.1 Insurance contracts

-

-

-

-

4.2 Premium

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements

are the same as those applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company

for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted

significant insurance risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate

the policy holders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects

the policy holders.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance

contract for the remainder of its life time, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly

during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts issued by the Company are generally classified in four basic categories,

i.e. Fire and Property, Marine and Transport, Motor and Miscellaneous and are issued to

multiple types of clients with business in engineering, automobiles, cement, power, textile,

paper, agriculture, services and trading sectors, etc. and individuals as well. The tenure of

these insurance contracts depends upon terms of the policies written and vary accordingly.

Other insurance contracts provide variety of coverage including cover against burglary, loss

of cash in safe, cash in transit and cash on counter, fidelity guarantee, personal accident,

workmen compensation, contractor's all risk, erection all risk, machinery breakdown, boiler

damage, crop and health.

In addition to direct insurance, the Company also participates in risks under co-insurance

contracts from other companies and also accepts risks through re-insurance inward by way

of facultative acceptance on case to case basis provided such risks are within the

underwriting policies of the Company. The nature of the risks undertaken under such

arrangement is consistent with the risks in each class of business as stated above.

Premium written under a policy is recognised as income over the period of insurance from

the date of issuance of the policy to which it relates to its expiry. Where the pattern of

incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy, premium is recognised as revenue in

accordance with the pattern of incidence of risk. The portion of premium written relating to the

unexpired period of coverage is recognised as unearned premium by the Company.

The Company neither issues investment contracts nor does it issue insurance contracts with

discretionary participation features (DPF).

Fire & Property insurance contracts generally cover the assets of the policy holders against

damages by fire, earthquake, riots & strike, explosion, atmospheric disturbance, flood,

electric fluctuations impact, burglary and loss of profit followed by incident of fire.

Marine & Transport insurance contracts generally provide cover for loss or damage to cargo

while in transit to and from foreign land and inland transit due to various insured perils

including loss of or damage to carrying vessel.

Motor insurance contracts provide indemnity for accidental damage to or loss of insured

vehicles including loss of or damage to third party and other comprehensive car coverage.

There are certain other new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that

are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on or after Junauary 01,

2021 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the

Company's operations and are therefore not stated in these financial statements. 
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4.3 Reinsurance ceded

4.4 Claims

(a) Outstanding claims (including IBNR)

(b) Claims reported but not settled

(c) Claims incurred but not reported

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on the reporting date. If there

is an objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the

carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that

impairment loss in the statement of profit or loss.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are

extinguished or expired.

Provision for liability in respect of claims reported but not settled at the reporting date is made

on the basis of individual case estimates. The case estimates are based on the assessed

amounts of individual losses and where loss assessments have not been carried-out, the

estimates are established in light of currently available information, past experience of similar

claims and in some cases in relation to the sums insured. Case estimates are reviewed

periodically to ensure that the recognised outstanding claim amounts are adequate to cover

expected future payments including expected claims settlement costs and are updated as

and when new information becomes available.

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims are recognised as an asset and

measured at the amount expected to be received.

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to

limit the potential for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums

are accounted for in the same period as the related premiums for the direct or accepted

reinsurance business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable

are estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance

assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from

reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or

settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related

reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses

from reinsurance contracts are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance

assets.

Claims are charged to income as incurred based on estimated liability for compensation

owed under the insurance contracts. It includes claims handling costs that are directly related

to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other

recoveries and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

A liability for outstanding claims is recognised in respect of all claims incurred up to the

reporting date, which is measured at the undiscounted value of expected future payments.

Provision for outstanding claims include amounts in relation to claims reported but not settled, 

claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made at the reporting date. The

Company takes actuarial advice for the determination of IBNR claims. The 'Ultimate Loss

Ratio Technique' has been used to obtain an adequate estimate of the IBNR claims.
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4.5 Premium deficiency reserve (liability adequacy test)

4.6 Cash and cash equivalents

4.7 Loans to employees

These are recognised at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given.
4.8 Investments

(a) Investments in associates

(b) Held-to-maturity

Keeping in view the adequacy of the reserves, as on December 31, 2020, performed by

Actuary in line with the provisions of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Rules,

2017 and the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, a premium deficiency reserve is not

required and accordingly no provision for the same has been made in financial statements of

the current year.

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed separately for each class of

business to ensure the adequacy of the unearned premium liability for that class.
It is performed by comparing the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and

other expenses, including reinsurance expense, commissions and other underwriting

expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of policies in force at

the reporting date with the carrying amount of unearned premium liability. Any deficiency is

recognised by establishing a provision (premium deficiency reserve) to meet the deficit.

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-

maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification.

Other long-term investments that are intended to be held-to-maturity are subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method. Any premium paid or discount

availed on the acquisition of held to maturity investment is deferred and included in income

for the period on a straight line basis over the term of investment. For investments carried at

amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the

investments are de-recognised or impaired.

Classification of an investment is made on the basis of intended purpose for holding such

investment. Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the

time of purchase and re-evaluates such designation on regular basis.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective

evidence that investments are impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company applies

the requirements of IAS 39 'Financial instruments: recognition and measurement' to all

investments except for investments in Associates accounted for under equity method, which

are tested for impairment in accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 'Impairment of

assets'.

Associates are the entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are

initially recognised at cost. The Company's share of its associates' post acquisition profits or

losses, movement in other comprehensive income and its share of post-acquisition

movement in reserves is recognised in statement of profit or loss, statement of

comprehensive income and reserves respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition

movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of investments. Distributions received

from an Associate reduce the carrying amount of investment.

Investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to

acquisition except for 'investment at fair value through profit or loss', which is measured

initially at fair value.

All 'regular way' purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which

is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the investment.

The expected future liability is estimated with reference to the experience during the expired

period of the contracts, adjusted for significant individual losses, which are not expected to

recur during the remaining period of the policies and expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable.

The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recognised as an expense or income in

the statement of profit or loss for the year.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash-in-hand,

cash at banks on current and saving accounts.
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(c) Available-for-sale

(d) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

4.9 Due from insurance contract holders

4.10 Insurance / reinsurance payables and receivables

4.11 Claim recoveries

4.12 Taxation

(a) Current

(b) Deferred

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in

response to the need for liquidity, changes in interest rates, equity prices or exchange rates

are classified as available-for-sale.

Provision for current year's taxation is determined in accordance with the prevailing law of

taxation on income enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and is

based on current rates of taxation being applied on the taxable income for the year, after

taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, and taxes paid under the Final

Tax Regime. The tax charge also includes adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior

years which arise from assessments finalised during the year.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are stated at market value in accordance with

the requirements of IAS 39 (Financial instruments: recognition and measurement). The

Company uses stock exchange quotations at the reporting date to determine the market

value of its quoted investments whereas fair value of investments in delisted / unlisted

companies is determined by reference to the net assets and financial position of the investee

on the basis of latest available audited financial statements.

Investments classified as held-for-trading and those designated as such are included in this

category. Investments are classified as held-for-trading if these are acquired for the purpose

of selling in the short term. Gains or losses on investments held-for-trading are recognised in

statement of profit or loss.

These are recognised when due, at fair value of the consideration receivable less provision

for doubtful receivables, if any. Provision for impairment on premium receivables is

established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all

the amounts due according to original terms of receivable. Receivables are also analysed as

per their ageing and accordingly provision is maintained on a systematic basis.

Insurance / reinsurance payables and receivables are carried at cost, which is the fair value

of the consideration to be paid / received in the future for services. However, an assessment

is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a

financial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated

recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss is recognised for

the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of financial position liability method in

respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of

assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the

computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and

deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Claim recoveries receivable from reinsurers are recognised as an asset at the same time as

the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognised as a liability and are

measured at the amount expected to be received.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in statement of profit or loss except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity; in this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.
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4.13 Deferred commission expense

4.14 Prepaid reinsurance expense

4.15 Property and equipment

(a) Depreciation

(b) De-recognition

4.16 Investment property

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing

balance method so as to write-off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their

estimated useful lives at the rates given in note 5. The Company charges depreciation on

additions from the date when the asset is available for use and on deletions upto the date

when the asset is de-recognised. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by

management at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

An item of fixed assets is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits

are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset

is included in statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognised.

Investment property is accounted for under the fair value model in accordance with the

requirements of IAS 40. Subsequent capital expenditure on existing property and gain / loss

on disposals are accounted for in the same manner as for fixed assets.

Premium for reinsurance contracts operative on a proportional and non-proportional basis is

recorded as a liability on attachment of the underlying risks reinsured or on inception of the

reinsurance contract respectively. For proportional reinsurance contracts, the reinsurance

expense is recognised in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium income to

which they relate. For non-proportional reinsurance contracts, the reinsurance expense is

recognised evenly in the period of indemnity. The portion of reinsurance premium not

recognised as an expense is shown as a prepayment.

Fixed assets, except freehold land and buildings on freehold land, are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Freehold land is stated

at revalued amount whereas buildings on freehold land are stated at revalued amounts less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other

repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in

which these are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold land and buildings on

freehold land are recognised, net of tax, in statement of other comprehensive income and

accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a

decrease previously recognised in statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised

in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first

recognised in statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining

surplus attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year,

the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset

charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, is

reclassified from the revaluation surplus on fixed assets to retained earnings.

Commission costs incurred in obtaining and recording policies of insurance and reinsurance

are being deferred and recognised as an asset in correlation with unearned premium that will

be recognised in the subsequent reporting periods.



49THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 

4.17 Unearned premium reserves

4.18 Unearned reinsurance commission

.4.19 Retirement benefit obligations

(a) Defined contribution plan

(b) Compensated absences

4.20 Other creditors and accruals

4.21 Provisions

4.22 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be

recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain

that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,

regulations, public expectations, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in

future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted

to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognised

provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally

recognised as part of cost of an asset.

- has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be confirmed only

by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly

within the control of the Company; or

- has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation, or the amount of obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Unearned premium reserves represent the portion of premium written relating to the

unexpired period of coverage. Unearned premium reserves are being calculated as a

proportion of the gross premium of each policy, determined as the ratio of the unexpired

period of the policy and the total period, both measured to the nearest day as specified in the

Insurance Rules for non-life insurance.

The Company accounts for liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the

period in which these are earned.

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value

of the consideration to be paid in future for goods or services received, whether or not billed

to the Company.

The Comapany is operating a provident fund scheme for all its permanent employees; equal

monthly contribution to the fund is made at the rate of 10% of the basic salaries both by the

employees and the Company.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or constructive,

as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to

settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Commission income receivable from reinsurers is taken to statement of profit or loss in

accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which these relate.
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4.23 Revenue recognition

(a) Premium income earned

- for direct business evenly over period of the policy.

- for proportional re-insurance business 

(b) Administrative surcharge

(c) Commission income

(d) Dividend income and bonus shares

(e) Investment income

Income from held-to-maturity investments

- Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments

Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is included in income currently.

- Income from investments at fair value through profit or loss

(f) Rental and other income

Rental and other income is recognised on accrual basis.

4.24 Management expenses

4.25 Impairment

(a) Financial assets

Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of policy, the premium is

recognised as revenue in accordance with the pattern of incidence of risk.

evenly over the period of underlying

insurance policies.

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more

events had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

Premium written under a policy is recognised as income over the period of insurance from

the date of issuance of the policy to which it relates to its expiry as follows:

This represents documentation and other charges recovered by the Company from policy

holders in respect of policies issued at the rate of 5% of the premium restricted to a maximum

of Rs.5,000 per policy. Administrative surcharge is recognised as revenue at the time the

policies are written.

Commission income from reinsurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying

insurance policy by the Company. This income is deferred and brought to the account as

revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which it

relates. Profit / commission, if any, which the Company may be entitled to under the terms of

reinsurance, is recognised on accrual basis.

Gain / loss on sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss is included in income

currently.

An impairment loss, in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, is calculated

as a difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of

available-for-sale financial asset is calculated with reference to its current fair value.

Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining

financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Income from held-to-maturity investments is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into

account the effective yield on the investments.

Dividend income is recognised when the right of receipt is established. Bonus shares are

accounted for by increase in number of shares without any change in the value of

investments.

Management expenses, which are directly attributable to the underwriting business, are

allocated in accordance with the volume of each class of business. Portion of management

expenses, which are not allocable to the underwriting business, are categorised as other

expenses. These expenses are charged to statement of profit or loss at the time the policies

are accepted.
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(b) Non-financial assets

4.26 Financial instruments

4.27 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

4.28 Earnings per share

4.29 Share capital

4.30 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.31 Foreign currencies

4.32 Segment reporting

The Company accounts for segment reporting using the classes of business as specified under

the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Insurance Rules, 2017 as the primary reporting format

based on the Company's practice of reporting to the management is on the same basis.

As the operations of the Company are carried-out in Pakistan, information relating to geographical

segment is not considered relevant.

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a

deduction from the proceeds.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditure, that are directly attributable to segments, have been

assigned to them whereas the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more

segments have been allocated to segments on a reasonable basis. The assets and liabilities,

which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis, are reported as

unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

The Company presents basic earnings per share for its shareholders. Basic earnings per share is

calculated dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in Pak Rupees

at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date whereas transactions in foreign

currencies during the year are initially recorded in functional currency at the rates of exchange

prevailing at the transaction date. All non-monetary items are translated in Pak Rupees at

exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are

determined. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include current & other

accounts, investments, insurance / reinsurance receivables, reinsurance recoveries against

outstanding claims, loans and other receivables, outstanding claims, insurance / reinsurance

payables and other creditors & accruals. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of instrument. Initial recognition is made

at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition except for 'financial

instruments at fair value through profit or loss', which are measured initially at fair value.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the Company looses control of the contractual rights

that comprise the financial asset. The Company looses such control if it realises the rights to

benefit specified in the contract, the rights expire or the Company surrenders those rights.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,

cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on subsequent measurement and de-recognition is charged

to the profit or loss currently. The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the

individual policy statements associated with each item.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised as liability in the Company's financial

statements in the year in which these are approved.

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each year-end to

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable

amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying

amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in

statement of profit or loss. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has

been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last

impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased

to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset

in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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5.1 Surplus on revaluation 

5.2

5.3

5.4 Disposal of fixed assets

5.5

Freehold land of the Company is located at 63-Sharah-e-Quaid-e- Azam, Lahore; total

covered area is 2,080 square feet.

Based on the aforementioned revaluation reports dated December 31, 2018, the forced sale

values of the freehold land and buildings on freehold land was assessed at Rs.146.697

million.

Latest revaluation of freehold land and buildings on freehold land was carried-out by

Sadruddin Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. (PBA Approved Valuers & Real Estate Appraisers,

Business & Finance Centre, Suite # 1004, 10th Floor, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi) as at

December 31, 2018 on the basis of present market value of freehold land and current

depreciated market value of buildings. Had there been no revaluation, carrying value of

buildings on freehold land as at December 31, 2020 would have been lower by Rs.26.165

million (2019: Rs.27.565 million).

Assets written-off during the year

Motor cycles

Honda CD 125 LRB-7445 40 38 2

Honda CD 70 LEN-10-9095 66 59 7

Shari CD 70 KFD-6382 42 37 5

2020 148 134 14

2019 - - -

Particulars Cost
Accumulated 

depreciation

Book

value

- - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - 

Motor Cycle

Honda CD 70 LEN-17B-2199 54 25

 

29

    

57

            

28

          

Company policy Mr. M. Asad Amin, Lahore (employee)

Honda CD 70 LEN-17B-7160
54 25

 

29

    

57

            

28

          

Company policy
Mr. M. Ghulam Jaffar, Lahore 

(employee)
Honda CD 70 LEN-17B-7159 54 25

 

29

    

57

            

28

          

Company policy Mr. Kashif Hassan, Lahore (employee)

Honda CD 70 LEN-17B-4973 54 24

 

30

    

57

            

27

          

Company policy Mr. M. Saeed, Lahore (employee)

Honda CD 70 LEN-17B-4977
54 24

 

30

    

57

            

27

          

Company policy
Miss. Parveen Akhtar, Lahore 

(employee)
Honda CD 70 LEO-18-4581 54 23

 

31

    

57

            

26

          

Company policy Mr. Zafar Iqbal, Lahore (employee)

Honda CD 70 LEO-18-4584 54 23

 

31

    

57

            

26

          

Company policy Mr. Asghar Ali, Lahore (employee)

Yamaha YD-70 LEV-09-5298 50 46

 

4

      

9

              

5

            

Negotiation Mr. Abdul Ghaffar, Layah

Honda CD 70 LEW-18-7044 55 24

 

31

    

57

            

26

          

Company policy Mr. Rashid Ashraf, Lahore (employee)

483 239

 

244

  

465

          

221

        

Generators

05-Gasoline Generators 

MG8000E
258 224

 

34

    

50

            

16

          

Negotiation Mr. Fareed Hussain Shah, Lahore

Megma Generator Mg3500E 40 34 6 10 4 ----- do ----- ----- do -----

Honda EP 2500CX 42 34 8 10 2 ----- do ----- ----- do -----

340 292 48 70 22

2020     823                531    292            535         243 

2019 1,771 1,560 211 1,428 1,217

Sold  to:

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand- - - - - - - - - - 

Description Cost
Accumulate

d

Depreciation

Book

Value

Sale 

Proceeds 

(Loss) / 

Gain

Mode of 

disposal
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6. Investment property 2020 2019
Note

Opening balance 17,282 17,282

Unrealised fair value gain upon revaluation:

Opening balance 8,895 4,412

Gain arisen upon revaluation 
carried-out during the year 28 4,483 4,483

Closing balance 13,378 8,895

Closing book value 30,660 26,177

6.1

6.2

7. Investments in Associates - Quoted

7.1

7.2

7.3 The Company's interests in its Associates were as follows:

Based on the revaluation reports of Sadruddin Associates (Pvt) Ltd. dated December 31,

2020, forced sale values of the Company's investment properties have been assessed at

Rs.24.528 million (2019: Rs. 20.942 million).

In order to perfrom impairment testing of its investments in BWM under IAS 36, the

management based on the share valuation report of M/s. Yasir & Co. Chartered Accountant,

has concluded that the carrying value of BWM does not exceed its recoverable amount.

Further, the recoverable amount of investment has been determined using the 'value-in-use'

computation which estimates the value per ordinary share by using discounted future cash

flows method.

Rupees in thousand

The management, during the financial year ended December 31, 2016, had transferred its

properties located at Mumtaz Centre and Eden Centre, Lahore having aggregate book value

of Rs.17.282 million to Investment Property as it intends to earn rentals against these

properties.

Market values of the Company's investments in BWM and GIL as at December 31, 2020

were Rs.420 thousand (2019: Rs.311 thousand) and Rs. 773.059 million (2019: Rs.315.646

million) respectively. 

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd.

2020 Pakistan 3,440,482 598,299 671,180 (6,642)       0.09 

2019 3,575,623 717,486 640,088 (37,617)       0.09 

Ghandhara Industries Ltd.

2020 Pakistan 16,957,881 11,877,308 11,350,395 (1,172,876)       5.56 

2019 14,977,695 10,433,402 12,222,988 (428,075)       5.56 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - -

Country of 

Incorporation

Liabilities as 

at December 

31,

Revenues for the 

period ended 

December 31,

% 

Interest 

held

Company Name 

Assets as at 

December 

31,

Profit/ (loss) after 

taxation for the 

period ended 

December 31,

Bannu Woollen Mills Ltd. (BWM)

Carrying value at beginning of the year 

 8,940 (2019: 8,940) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 2,610 2,428

Share of loss after taxation (6) (35)

Other changes in comprehensive income / (loss) 46 (1)

Share of items directly recognised in equity (47) 24

Share of surplus on revaluation of property,

 plant and equipment of BWM - 194

2,603 2,610
Ghandhara Industries Ltd. (GIL)

Carrying value at beginning of the year 

2,368,296 (2019: 2,368,296) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 252,309 265,126

Share of (loss) / profit after taxation (65,191) (23,793)

Other changes in comprehensive loss (41) (49)

Share of items directly recognised in equity - 45

Share of surplus on revaluation of property,

 plant and equipment of GIL 95,040 10,980

282,117 252,309

284,720 254,919
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8. Investments in equity securities 2020 2019

Note

Available-for-sale investments 8.1 615 569

Investments at fair value through profit or loss 8.2 134,372 130,167

134,987 130,736

8.1

8.2 Investments at fair value through profit or loss

8.3

9. Investments in debt securities (Held to maturity)

2020 2019

Pakistan Investment Bond July 22, 2020 0            5,234 

March 26, 2020 0            5,649 

April 21, 2021              5,089            5,134 

April 21, 2021              6,106            6,154 

July 19, 2022              5,338            5,381 

July 19, 2022            10,656          10,732 

July 12, 2023              9,299            8,871 

Sep. 19, 2022              7,776            7,525 

Sep. 19, 2022              5,813 0

Sep. 19, 2022              5,285 0

55,362 54,680

12.00

7.75

Maturity 

date

Coupon 

rate %

-do-

During the year, units 11,817,196 of NBP Islamic Stock Fund have been redeemed at 

prevailing NAV per unit Rs. 11.0842 and invested in NBP Islamic Mahana Amdani Fund.

-do-

-do-

Rupees in thousand

-do-

8.00

-do-

9.00

9.25

9.00

9.00

 Available-for-sale investments

-do-

7.75

Rupees in thousand

-do-

-do-

12.00

12.00

-do-

Face value

 December 31, 

2020 

 December 31, 

2019 

 December 31, 

2020 

 December 

31, 2019 

Pakistan Investment Bonds - PIBs

(including accrued interest)                       8                      8      54,500 55,362 54,680

No. of certificates  Value of certificates 

- - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - -

Cost

 Unrealised 

gain / 

(impairmen

t)

Carrying 

value
Cost

 Unrealised 

gain / 

(impairment)

Carrying 

value

Listed shares

Hamid Textile Mills Ltd. 49,000 490 (490) 0 49,000 490 (490) 0

Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 888 24 57 81 888 24 59 83

Mutual fund

JS Growth Fund 2,968 135 399 534 2,867 135 351 486

649 (34) 615 649 (80) 569

 No. of 

shares / units

as at 

December 31,

2020 

 No. of shares 

/ units

as at 

December 31,

2020 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

- - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - -

Cost
Unrealised

(loss) / gain

Carrying 

and fair 

value

Cost
Unrealised 

(loss) / gain

Carrying 

and fair 

value

Mutual funds

HBL Growth and Cash Fund
 (formerly PICIC Growth Fund) 13,962

           

520

        

(255)

           

265

       

13,609 520 (251) 269

NBP Islamic Mahana Amdani Fund 12,936,963

    

130,984

 

3,123

         

134,107

 

0 0 0 0

NBP Islamic Stock Fund 8.3 0 0 0 0 11,817,196 125,036 4,862 129,898
(formerly NAFA Islamic Stock Fund)

131,504

 

2,868

         

134,372

 

125,556 4,611 130,167

Note

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

- - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - -

No. of units No. of units
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9.1

9.2

10. Loans and other receivables 2020 2019
Note

Advance to employees against expenses 125 22

Security deposits 1,217 1,217

Sales tax - refundable 219 128

Tax paid under protest - refundable 22.1 5,500 5,500

Forced tax recovery - refundable 22.2 138 138

Forced federal excise duty recovery - refundable 22.4 23,831 23,831

Loans to employees - unsecured, considered good 10.1 2,757 1,138

Others 1,276 870

35,063 32,844

10.1

11. Insurance / reinsurance receivables -

 

Unsecured and considered good

Due from insurance contract holders 70,009 87,511

Less: provision for impairment of receivables from
     insurance contract holders 11.2 (70,009) (87,511)

0 0

Due from other insurers 140,548 116,538

Due from reinsurers 21,443 34,855

Less: provision for impairment of due from other
   insurers / reinsurers 11.3 (39,540) (28,701)

122,451 122,692

122,451 122,692

11.1

11.2 Provision for doubtful receivables from insurance contract holders

Balance as at January 01, 87,511 87,511

Provision written-off during the year (17,502) -

Balance as at December 31, 70,009 87,511

11.3 Provision for doubtful receivables from other insurers / reinsurers

Balance as at January 01,            28,701 24,916

Provision made during the year            10,839            3,785 

39,540 28,701

Rupees in thousand

This represent interest free loan given to employees in accordance with the Company's

policy / Board's special approval on account of loan for personal use (please also refer note

no. 33.2). Which is recoverable in equal monthly instalments.

Market value of these PIBs as at December 31, 2020 was Rs.52.462 million

(2019: Rs. 51.627 million). Profit on PIBs is received bi-annually.

No balance was due from associated companies as at December 31, 2020 and December

31, 2019.

Investments in PIBs have been made to meet the statutory requirements of section 29(2)(a)

of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.  

Balance as at December 31 ,
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12. Deferred taxation - net 2020 2019
Note

This is composed of the following:

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 1,766 1,837

- surplus on revaluation of buildings 12,363 12,764

- surplus on revaluation of investment property 3,880 2,579

18,009 17,180
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:

- unused tax losses 36,904 35,237

- provision for doubtful insurance / 
reinsurance receivables and others 32,159 34,092

- employee's retirement benefits 969 819

- minimum tax recoverable against normal tax
charge in future years 4,984 2,966

75,016 73,114

Deferred tax asset 57,007 55,934

Less: deferred tax asset not recognised - 22,743

Net deferred tax asset recognised 57,007 33,191

12.1

13. Taxation - payments less provisions

Advance income tax 10,605 10,448

Provision for taxation (1,794) (1,682)

8,811 8,766

14. Prepayments

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 21,640 17,678

867 872

22,507 18,550

15. Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

  Cash-in-hand 124 33

Cash with banks

- current accounts 2,652 4,901

- savings accounts 15.1 6,556 41,442

9,208 46,343

Deposits maturing within 12 months

Term deposit receipts 15.2 855 855

Provision for impairment (855) (855)

0 0

             9,332          46,376 

15.1

15.2

Rupees in thousand

Up to the end of financial year 2019, the Company had restricted deferred tax assets to Rs.

33.191 million. During the year ended on December 31, 2020, the management has decided

to recognize deferred tax assets based on the assumption that Company will earn

foreseeable profits to adjust deferred tax assets.

Others

These represent term deposit receipts issued by financial institutions as the chances of

realization of these deposits are bleak, hence these have been fully provided for.

Rates of profit on these accounts, during the year, ranges from 11.57% to 5.58%

(2019: 8.42% to 11.57%) per annum.
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16. Share capital 2020 2019

16.1 Authorised share capital

2020 2019

75,000,000 75,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 750,000 750,000

16.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

34,720,000 34,720,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10  
each fully paid in cash 347,200 347,200

15,280,000 15,280,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 
each issued  as fully paid  

bonus shares 152,800 152,800

50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000

17. Share premium reserve 

18. Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net

Rupees in thousand

Number of shares

The Company, during the financial year ended December 31, 2015, had issued 4,617,977

shares by way of otherwise than right under section 86(1) of the repealed Companies

Ordinance, 1984 to its Holding Company at a price of Rs.12.9927 per share. Share premium

amounting Rs.13.820 million was received on this issue.

This represents surplus over book value resulted from revaluations of freehold land and

buildings on freehold land carried-out during the year ended December 31, 2018, adjusted

only by surplus realised on disposal of revalued assets, incremental depreciation arising out

of revaluation and deferred taxation. The year-end balance has been arrived at as follows:

2020 2019

Balance as at January 01, 189,548 191,004

Less: transferred to accumulated loss / unappropriated profit 

on account of incremental depreciation for the year (1,383) (1,456)

188,165 189,548

Less: deferred tax on:

- opening balance of surplus 12,764 13,186

- incremental depreciation for the year (401) (422)

12,363 12,764

175,802 176,784

Share of surplus on revaluation of fixed assets of 
 Associates accounted for under equity method - 

net of deferred taxation 209,333 114,852

Balance as at December 31, 385,135 291,636

 Rupees in thousand
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19. Long term deposits

20. Insurance / reinsurance payables Note 2020 2019

Due to other insurers 4,287 9,137

Due to reinsurers 36,772 30,490

41,059 39,627

21. Other creditors and accruals

Commission payable 5,480 4,537

Federal excise duty 364 1,576

Federal insurance fee 24 100

Accrued expenses 1,492 1,205

Income tax deducted at source 207 539

Provident fund payable 21.1 340 -

Sundry creditors 77 402

Leave encashment payable 3,864 3,192

Advance against rent 280 280

Others 20 20

12,148 11,851

21.1

22. Contingencies and commitments

22.1

22.2

Rupees in thousand

These interest-free deposits have been received in accordance with the Company's Hire

Purchase Policy (Motorbike) and against these deposits motorbikes have been provided to

the respective employees. These deposits are adjustable after specified periods by transfer

of title of motorbikes to the respective employees.

The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), vide his impugned order dated June

27, 2014 for the tax year 2008, had created tax demand of Rs.50.990 million under section

121(1)(d) (Best judgement assessment) of the Ordinance. The Company, against aforesaid

impugned order, filed complaint before Hon'ble Federal Tax Ombudsman (FTO) wherein

FTO in its Order recommended FBR to direct the Commissioner concerned to revisit the

impugned order dated 27.06.2014 under his revisionary jurisdiction. The CIR, in compliance

to the directions of Hon'ble FTO, himself accepted/stated vide his Order u/s 122A dated

16.02.2016 that the taxpayer (Company) was not provided proper opportunity of being heard

hence, the impugned order dated 27.06.2014 is remanded back for making assessment

afresh in accordance with the law. Meanwhile, the representation, filed by FBR in February,

2015 before Hon'ble President of Pakistan by challenging the Order of FTO, was accepted

on 30.05.2016 which forthwith prompted the CIR to issue another Order dated 18.06.2016

wherein CIR declared that his earlier order dated 16.02.2016 has become infructuous and

void ab-initio in view of acceptance of representation of FBR by the Hon'ble President of

Pakistan the impugned assessment order dated 27.06.2014 stand restored. The Department

thereafter, had made a forced recovery of Rs.138 thousand on June 30, 2016, which has

been grouped under loans and other receivables (note 10). The Company, during the

financial year 2016, instituted an appeal against impugned order before CIR (Appeals-II),

Lahore who accepted the Company's appeal vide its order dated 10.10.2016 and annulled

the impugned assessment order dated 27.06.2014, being void and passed without

jurisdiction. Finally, the Department filed 2nd appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland

Revenue (ATIR) in December, 2016, which is pending adjudication.

Employees' Provident Fund was established with effect from January 01, 2019; accordingly,

payable classified and grouped under other creditors and accruals.

The Income Tax Department (the Department), during June, 2015, had passed an order

under sections 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year

2009 by creating a demand of Rs.8.586 million with default surcharge amounting Rs.8.447

million. The Company, during the financial year ended December 31, 2015, had filed an

appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) against the said order.

The Company, however, had paid Rs.5.500 million under protest and grouped this amount

under loans and other receivables (note 10). The CIR(A), during April, 2016, had decided the

appeal in the Company's favour. The Company thereafter, applied for the refund of forced

recovery of Rs.5.500 million made by the Department who filed second appeal before the

Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) during June, 2016 against the impugned order of

CIR(A), which is pending adjudication.
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22.3

22.4

22.5

22.6

22.7 Case filed by Rana Basit Rice Mills (Pvt.) Ltd. before the Insurance Tribunal asking for the

decree of Rs.38.114 million along with liquidated damages u/s 118 of the Insurance

Ordinances, 2000 has been dismissed in favour of the Company by the Hon'ble Insurance

Tribunal, Okara on 16.01.2021 by invoking proviso to section 115 of Insurance Ordinance,

2000. Thereafter, the policyholder has again filed a fresh suit for Euros 282,397 in respect of

his marine export of rice claim before Additional District Judge, Lahore which is at initial

stage.

The Company filed a civil suit against Premier Alliance Industries Ltd. for recovery of

Rs.7.300 million in lieu of issuance of insurance guarantee which has been decreed in favour

of comapny. Thereafter, the Company filed execution petition which is pending adjudication.

Ghulam Ali Zahid (the Appellant) had filed an appeal against the Company for payment of

Rs.7.300 million before the Lahore High Court, Lahore under section 124 of the Insurance

Ordinance, 2000 against order of the Insurance Tribunal, Lahore, which dismissed the

application of the Appellant during December, 2008. The appeal was decided by the Lahore

High Court and the case was remanded back to the Insurance Tribunal, Lahore for recording

evidence on additional issues. The Insurance Tribunal, Lahore, during the preceding year,

had again dismissed the case for non-prosecution. At present, an application for restoration

filed by Ghulam Ali Zahid is pending adjudication before the Hon'ble Insurance Tribunal,

Lahore.

The Deputy Commissioner Revenue, during the financial year ended December 31, 2016,

had passed three orders on 28.06.2016 under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 relating to tax

years 2013, 2014 and 2015 creating federal excise duty liability of Rs.15.529 million,

Rs.9.497 million and Rs.7.102 million respectively (total Rs.32.128 million alongwith penalty

to the tune of Rs.1.606million). The Company, during theses aforesaid years, had paid sales

tax to the respective Provincial Governments as after the 18th Constitutional Amendment (

19.10.2010) it had become a provincial matter. The Company, during the financial year

ended December 31, 2016, had filed appeals before the CIR (Appeals) who rejected these

appeals on 30.11.2016. Resultantly, the Sales Tax Department (Department) of Federal

Board of Revenue (FBR), on December 30, 2016, had affected forced recoveries

aggregating Rs.23.831 million by attaching the Company's bank accounts. The

aforementioned forced recoveries have been grouped under loans and other receivables

(note 10). The Company, thereafter, had filed appeals before the Hon'ble Appellate Tribunal

Inland Revenue (ATIR), Lahore Bench and the Hon'ble ATIR accepted the appeals of the

Company on 29.08.2017 by vacating the orders of the authorities below being illegal, void ab-

initio and not sustainable in the eyes of law. The Company thereafter, applied for the refund

of forced recovery of Rs.23.831 million made by the Department. Being aggreived by the

Department who pay no heed to the refund application of the Company, the Company,

during financial year 2018, filed complaint before Federal Tax Ombudsman (FTO) who

rejected the complaint during financial year 2018. The Company filed representation before

Hon'ble President of Pakistan who also rejected the Company's representation vide its order

dated 09.01.2019 which was challenged by the Company before Hon'ble Lahore High Court,

Lahore which is pending adjudication. Meanwhile,three references filed by the Department

before Hon'ble Lahore High Court, Lahore (LHC) has been dismissed, during September,

2020, by observing that in view of clear exemption in FED Act, 2005 duties on the services

provided in a Province shall not be levied where Provincial Sales Tax has been levied.

Thereafter, the CIR has filed three civil appeals before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan,

which is pending adjudication. 

Sardar Khan (Ex-Managing Director) after his resignation on 05.04.2010 which was accepted

by the Company on 07.04.2010 filed a suit, during financial year 2012, for recovery his

alleged claim on account of gratuity benefits for Rs. 20.090 million alongwith interest & costs

against the Company which was decreed in his favour by the trial court vide its Order dated

09.01.2017. The aforesaid impugned order was challenged by the Company through appeal

before learned ADJ, Lahore who remanded the case to the lower court with the direction to

decide the case de-novo vide its order dated 10.11.2018. The judgment passed by the

appellate court dated 10.11.2018 was assailed by both the parties before Hon'ble Lahore

High Court, Lahore who vide its Order dated 30.06.2020, set aside the impugned appellate

order dated 10.11.2018 with the direction to ADJ, Lahore to decide it afresh. Finally, on

03.10.2020, the appeal of the Company has been accepted by the Hon'ble ADJ, Lahore and

passed in favour of the Company by declaring that the impugned judgment of of Civil Court

dated 09.01.2017, being nullity, and are not sustainable in the eyes of law. Subsequently, Ex-

Managing Director has filed appeal before the Hon'ble Lahore High Court, Lahore against the

order of ADJ, Lahore, which is pending adjudication.
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22.8 Cases filed by Fashion Guide International and Baig Trading Corporation before the

Insurance Tribunal have been decided by the Insurance Tribunal on September 24, 2019.

The Tribunal has decided that the Petitioners ( Fashion Guide International and Baig Trading

Corporation) are entitled to recover Rs.8.376 million and Rs.8.130 million respectively along

with liquidated damages u/s 118 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 . The Company has filed

appeals before the Lahore High Court (LHC) against the aforesaid judgments of the Tribunal.

The LHC, vide its orders dated November 13, 2019, has suspended operation of the

impugned decrees subject to deposit of the decretal amounts of Rs.8.376 million and

Rs.8.130 million with the Deputy Registrar of LHC. The Company has deposited the required

amount and charged to claim expense. The matter is still pending adjudication before Hon'ble 

22.9

22.10

22.11

22.12

23. Net insurance premium 2020 2019

Written gross premium 140,986 139,149

Add: unearned premium reserve opening 41,338 14,331

Less: unearned premium reserve closing 62,720 41,338

Premium earned 119,604 112,142

Less: reinsurance premium ceded 56,366 53,377

Add: prepaid reinsurance premium opening 17,679 8,329

Less: prepaid reinsurance premium closing 21,640 17,679

Reinsurance expense 52,405 44,027

67,199 68,115
24. Net insurance claims expense

Claims paid 24.1 50,430 4,827

Add: outstanding claims including IBNR closing 35,472 35,375

Less: outstanding claims including IBNR opening 35,375 41,365

Claims expense 50,527 (1,163)

Less: reinsurance and other recoveries received 14,781 26,957

Add: reinsurance and other recoveries in respect
of outstanding claims closing 26,175 26,203

Less: reinsurance and other recoveries in respect
of outstanding claims opening 26,203 34,747

Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 14,753 18,413

35,774 (19,576)

Case filed by the alleged policyholder Shad & Company before Hon'ble InsuarnceTribunal,

Lahore was decreed in favour of Shad & Co. on 30.08.2018 by the Insurance Tribunal,

Lahore for Rs. 4.0million alongwith liquidated damages u/s 118 of the Insurance Ordinance,

2000. The Company challenged the order of Tribunal before Lahore High Court (LHC),

Lahore through appeal which was dismissed on 17.09.2020. The Company assailed the

Order of LHC before Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP), Islamabad who also

dismissed Company's appeal on 30.11.2020. Finally, the Company has filed Review Petition

before the Hon'ble SCP, Islamabad which is pending adjudication. On 04.01.2021, the

claimant Shad & Co has filed execution petition before Insurance Tribunal, Lahore for an

alleged claim amount of Rs. 29.547million i.e. the decretal amount of Rs. 4.0million alongwith

alleged liquidated damages to the tune of Rs. 25.547million) which is pending adjudication

and is being contested hardly. The Company has also challenged the vires of Section 118 of

the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 before the Honourable High Court, Lahore The management

of the Company is confident that the liability provided in accounts is sufficient to discharge its

liability.

Rupees in thousand

No commitments were outstanding as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

Suits filed by M/s. Chancellor Overseas and M/s. Toyota Capital Motors for Rs. 1.500 million

along with liquidated damages and Rs. 1.197 million respectively. Both the aforesaid cases

are pending before the Insurance Tribunal Lahore and Civil Judge Islamabad and are likely to 

be settled in favor of Company.

Case filed by Mr. Karim Gul in respect of his alleged salvage car claim was decreed by the

Learned Civil Judge Peshawar on April 30, 2011 for Rs. 1.00 million along with 10% interest

per annum with effect from July 14, 2006 till its realization. The Company preferred an appeal

against the impugned order dated April 30, 2011 which was accepted on November 17,

2012. Thereafter, the responded / petitioner filed an appeal before the Honorable Peshawar

High Court which restored the original order on March 25, 2019. Finally the Company has

now filed civil appeal before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending

adjudication.

LHC, Lahore.
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business on the basis of gross written premium revenue.

24.1

24.2 Claims development

24.3

25. Net commission expense Note 2020 2019

Commission paid or payable 23,335 23,014

Add: deferred commission expense opening 6,796 2,436

Less: deferred commission expense closing 9,967 6,796

Net commission 20,164 18,654

Less: commission received or recoverable 10,603 7,418

Add: unearned reinsurance commission opening 2,594 1,849

Less: unearned reinsurance commission closing 3,791 2,594

Commission from reinsurers 9,406 6,673

10,758 11,981

26. Management expenses

Employees' benefit cost 26.1 58,079 52,328

Travelling 408 1,008

Advertisements and business promotion 110 96

Printing and stationery 246 292

Depreciation 5 3,752 3,404

Rent, rates and taxes 550 324

Legal and professional charges - business related 3,670 1,804

Electricity, gas and water 1,710 1,592

Entertainment 485 809

Vehicles' running 1,250 993

Office repairs and maintenance 299 338

Bank charges 65 74

Postage, telegrams and telephone 947 899

Annual supervision fee SECP 100 100

Provision for doubtful insurance / 
reinsurance receivables 11 10,839 3,785

Miscellaneous 543 577

83,053 68,423

26.1 Employees' benefit cost

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 56,041 50,584

Charges for post employment benefit - 
 provident fund 2,038 1,744

58,079 52,328

26.2 The above management expenses allocated to the underwriting business segment represent

directly attributable expenses & indirect expenses, allocated to the various classes of

Claims paid for the preceding year have been netted-off with salvage recovery proceeding 

amounting Rs.43.472 million received from  W K Webster & Co. Ltd., United Kingdom (the 

Company's agent).

Rupees in thousand

IBNR reserve, for the year ending on 31st December, 2020, for Rs. 10.388 million (2019: Rs. 

5.344 million) as determined by the Actuary M/s. Anwar Associates.

Accident Year Prior to 2017 2017 2018 2019

2020 

(Including 

IBNR)

Total

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

At the end of accident  year 113,661 5,752 10,143 31,849 56,279 217,684

One year later 78,055 538 1,285 6,572 0 86,450

Two years later 64,273 88 83 0 0 64,444

Three years later 39,992 17 0 0 0 40,009

Four or more years later 28,703 0 0 0 0 28,703

Current estimate of cumulative claims 28,703 17 83 6,572 56,279 91,654

Cumulative payments /
 adjustments to date (4,861) (17) (83) (5,349) (45,872) (56,182)

Liability recognised in the 

statement of financial position 23,842 0 0 1,223 10,407 35,472

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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27. Investment income - net 2020 2019
Note

Income from equity securities

- Realised gain on investments at 
fair value through profit or loss 1,086 -

Income from debt securities

- Return on fixed income securities 
and deposits (held to maturity) 5,549 4,741

Net unrealised income on investments 
at fair value through profit or loss 3,119 8,893

9,754 13,634

28. Other income

Income from financial assets

Profit on savings accounts 1,922 1,884

Payable balances written-back 28.1 4,742 1,522

6,664 3,406
Income from non-financial assets

Fronting fee 332 1,393

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 5.4 243 1,217

Fair value gain on investment property 6 4,483 4,483

Sale of scrap - 10

5,058 7,103

11,722 10,509

28.1

29. Other expenses

Legal & professional fees other than business related 463 415

Auditors' remuneration 29.1 984 1,016

Donations - without directors' interest 58 -

Subscription 789 809

Insurance 1,513 1,287

Office expenses 338 308

Assets written-off 14 -

Repair and maintenance of computer equipment 137 69

Others 136 240

4,432 4,144

29.1 Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit fee 400 400

Half yearly review 150 150

Regulatory returns 121 116

Certification charges 116 180

Out-of-pocket expenses 197 170

984 1,016

30. Taxation

Current year (1,794) (1,682)

Deferred 23,428 (404)

21,634 (2,086)

30.1

The management, during the current year, has written-back balances aggregating Rs. 4.742

million (2019: Rs.1.522 million) payable to claimants and various other miscellaneous parties,

who have not raised any demand since the last many years. The written-back balances

pertained to periods prior to the financial year ended December 31, 2017. 

Rupees in thousand

No numeric tax rate reconciliation is presented in these financial statements as the Company

is mainly liable to pay tax due under section 113 (Minimum tax on the income of certain

persons) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Unused tax losses as at December 31, 2020

aggregated Rs.127.255 million (2019:Rs.121.507 million).
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31. (Loss) / earnings per share 2020 2019

(Loss) / profit after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (87,845) 2,335

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year 50,000,000 50,000,000

(Loss) / earnings per share - basic (1.76) 0.05

31.1

32. Compensation of directors, principal officer and executives

32.1

32.2 No meeting fee was paid to directors during the current and preceding year.

32.3 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

33. Transactions with related parties

33.1 Key management personnel

33.2  Significant transactions with related parties during the year
2020 2019

Nature of transaction

i) Associated Companies due to
  common directorship

Janana De Malucho Textile Mills Ltd. Salaries & benefits paid              1,943            1,949 

Expenses paid                 105               100 

ii) Key management personnel 

Salary and other employment benefits              3,834            3,322 
Loan              2,000                  -   

Year end balances

Contributions to provident fund - payable                 212                  -   
Loan - receivable

             1,700 
                 -   

Rupees in thousand

Chief executive, principal officer and executives are also provided with other facilities,

including free use of the Company maintained cars.

--Number of shares--

- - - - - Rupee - - - - -

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any

convertible instruments in issue as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, which

would have any effect on the earnings per share of the Company if the option to convert is

exercised.

Rupees in thousand

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for

planning, directing and controlling the Company. The Company considers its chief executive,

directors and members of the management team to be its key management personnel.

Related parties comprise of the Holding Company, Associated Companies and key

management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries-out

transactions with various related parties. Details of significant transactions with related

parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed else where in these financial

statements, are as follows:

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration including all

benefits to the chief executive, principal officer and executives of the Company are as

follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Managerial remuneration         5,653       5,653       7,531       6,548       3,325 2,892

Leave encashment - -       1,070          931          560 487

Bonus -

           

-

         

      1,134          986          568 494

Provident fund -

 

-

         

         753          655          333 289

House rent         1,727       1,727       2,317       2,015       1,497 1,302

Utilities and others         2,930       2,395          989       1,196          333 290

Medical allowance            470          249             -              68 - -

      10,780     10,024     13,794     12,399       6,616       5,754 

No. of persons 1 1 1 1 2 2

Chief executive Principal officer Executives

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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34. Segment information

The Company has following four primary segments:

- Fire & property damage insurance provides coverage against damages caused by fire, riot

& strike, explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuations and other

related perils.

- Marine & transport insurance provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk, damages

occurring in inland transit and other related perils.

- Motor insurance provides comprehensive car coverage, indemnity against third party loss

and other related coverages.

- Others insurance provides coverage against burglary, loss of cash-in-safe and cash-in-

transit, engineering losses and other coverages.

 December 31, 2020

Fire and 

property 

damage

Marine 

and 

Transport

Motor Others Total

Premium receivable (inclusive of 

federal excise duty, federal insurance fee,

 and administrative surcharge) 56,604

   

10,393

    

68,609 7,194 142,800

Less:    Federal excise duty 67

          

488

         

1,009 122 1,686

Federal insurance fee 4

            

38

           

76 9 127

Gross written premium 

(inclusive of administrative surcharge) 56,533

   

9,867

       

67,524 7,063 140,986

Gross direct premium 417

        

3,700

       

7,547 911 12,575

Facultative inward premium 56,115

   

6,110

       

59,903 6,126 128,254

Administrative surcharge 1

            

57

           

74 26 158

56,533

   

9,867

       

67,524 7,063 140,986

Insurance premium earned 51,270

   

9,169

       

49,878 9,287 119,604

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers 41,175

   

5,334

       

640 5,256 52,405

Net insurance premium 10,095

   

3,835

       

49,238 4,031 67,199

Commission income 7,534

     

1,226

       

- 646 9,406

Net underwriting income 17,629

   

5,061

       

49,238 4,677 76,605

Insurance claims 15,279

   

1,838

       

28,236 5,174 50,527

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 12,221 1,845 (1,400) 2,087 14,753

Net claims (3,058) 7 (29,636) (3,087) (35,774)

Commission expense (10,257) (1,788) (6,501) (1,618) (20,164)

Management expenses (33,303) (5,812) (39,777) (4,161) (83,053)

Net insurance claims and expenses (46,618) (7,593) (75,914) (8,866) (138,991)

Underwriting result (28,989) (2,532) (26,676) (4,189) (62,386)

Net investment income 9,754

Rental income 1,060

Other income 11,722

Other expenses (4,432)

Share of loss of associates (65,197)

Loss before taxation (109,479)

Segment assets 99,764 17,283 49,302 13,884 180,233

Unallocated assets 805,275

985,508

Segment liabilities 77,590 12,632 43,968 8,852 143,042

Unallocated liabilities 12,765

155,807

- - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - -
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35. Movement in investments

 December 31, 2019

Fire and 

property 

damage

Marine 

and 

transport

Motor Others Total

Premium receivable (inclusive of 

federal excise duty, federal insurance fee,

 and administrative surcharge) 47,905

  

15,453 65,528 11,989 140,875

Less:   Federal excise duty 115

       

455 944 92 1,606

           Federal insurance fee 7

           

35 70 8 120

Gross written premium 

(inclusive of administrative surcharge) 47,783

  

14,963 64,514 11,889 139,149

Gross direct premium 713

       

3,439 6,953 693 11,798

Facultative inward premium 47,068 11,467 57,500 11,181 127,216

Administrative surcharge 2 57 60 16 135

47,783 14,963 64,513 11,890 139,149

Insurance premium earned 39,206 14,573 50,811 7,552 112,142

Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers 31,364 8,073 788 3,802 44,027

Net insurance premium 7,842 6,500 50,023 3,750 68,115

Commission income 4,847 1,349 0 477 6,673

Net underwriting income 12,689 7,849 50,023 4,227 74,788

Insurance claims 16,501 (39,674) 20,694 1317 (1,162)

Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers 13,933 3,116 115 1,250 18,414

Net claims (2,568) 42,790 (20,579) (67) 19,576

Commission expense (7,876) (2,891) (6,680) (1,207) (18,654)

Management expenses (23,264) (7,527) (31,817) (5,815) (68,423)

Net insurance claims and expenses (33,708) 32,372 (59,076) (7,089) (67,501)

Underwriting results (21,019) 40,221 (9,053) (2,862) 7,287

Net investment loss 13,634

Rental income 963

Other income 10,509

Other expenses (4,144)

Share of loss of associates (23,828)

Profit before taxation 4,421

Segment assets 89,926 23,796 45,551 14,096 173,369

Unallocated assets 780,473

953,842

Segment liabilities 63,330 14,467 30,434 10,703 118,934

Unallocated liabilities 12,794

131,728

- - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - 

As at December 31, 2018 53,713 506 121,274 175,493

Additions during the year 15,914 - - 15,914

Disposals (redemptions) (15,000) - - (15,000)

Fair value net gain
(excluding net realised gains) (429) 63 8,893 8,527

Designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition 482 - - 482

As at December 31, 2019 54,680 569 130,167 185,416

Additions during the year 11,131 - 130,984 142,115

Disposals (redemptions) (10,500) - (129,898) (140,398)

Fair value net gain
(excluding net realised gains) 84 46 3,119 3,249

Designated at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition (33) - - (33)

As at December 31, 2020 55,362 615 134,372 190,349

Held to

maturity

Available- 

for-sale

At fair value 

through 

profit or 

loss

Total

- - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - 
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36. Financial and insurance risk management objectives and policies

The individual risk wise analysis is given below:

36.1 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

2020 2019

Bank balances 9,208 46,343

Investments in equity securities 134,987 130,736

Investments in debt securities 55,362 54,680

Insurance / reinsurance receivables 122,451 122,692

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 26,175 26,203

Loans and other receivables 5,250 3,225

353,433 383,879

Provision is made for doubtful insurance / reinsurance receivables according to the

Company's policy. The impairment provision is written-off when the Company expects that it

cannot recover the balance due. During the year, provision for doubtful insurance /

reinsurance receivables aggregating Rs.10.839 million (2019: Rs.3.785 million) have been

made. The provision for doubtful insurance / reinsurance receivables is shown in note 11 to

these financial statements. 

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of

business activities. As a result any change in economic, political or other conditions would

affect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The Company's credit risk

exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in these financial statements. The

management monitors and limits the Company's exposure and makes estimates of

provisions for doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to

significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in

entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure as

specified below:

Rupees in thousand

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and

market risk (including interest / mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk). The

Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Overall risks arising from the Company's financial assets and liabilities are limited. The

Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change

from previous period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Directors has

overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management

framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the Company's risk management

policies.

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will

fail to discharge its obligation and causes the other party to incur a financial loss. The

Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking

transactions with a large number of counterparties in various sectors and by continually

assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.
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to

as

ensures

cash

Credit rating

36.2 Liquidity risk

The credit quality of insurance / reinsurance receivables can be assessed with reference

external credit ratings as follows:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations

they fall due. Liquidity requirements are monitored regularly and the management

that sufficient liquid funds are available.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities on an undiscounted

flow basis:

2020 2019

Bank Al Habib Ltd. A1+ AA+ PACRA           7,820       21,549 

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA -do-                22               20 

Habib Bank Ltd. A1+ AAA JCR-VIS           1,340       24,738 

United Bank Ltd. A1+ AAA -do-                26               36 

          9,208       46,343 

Short term Long term Rating agency
Rupees in thousand

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flow

Upto one

year

2020

Financial liabilities

Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 35,472 35,472 35,472

Insurance / reinsurance payables 41,059 41,059 41,059

Other creditors and accruals 7,069 7,069 7,069

Unclaimed dividends 555 555 555

Total 84,155 84,155 84,155

2019

Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 35,375 35,375 35,375

Insurance / reinsurance payables 39,627 39,627 39,627

Other creditors and accruals 6,164 6,164 6,164

Unclaimed dividends 555 555 555

Total 81,721 81,721 81,721

- - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - -

2020 2019 

A or above (including PRCL) 130,500

        

19,630

           

150,130 139,111

BBB 6,136

            

-

                 

6,136 9,784

Total 136,636

        

19,630

           

156,266 148,895

Insurance / 

reinsurance 

receivables

Reinsurance 

recoveries 

against 

outstanding 

claims 

Total

- - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - 
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36.3 Market risk

a) Interest / mark-up rate risk

b) Sensitivity analysis

c) Price risk

Available-for-sale / Fair value through profit or loss investments are stated as per the policy

detailed in note 4.8 (c)(d). The carrying and market values of these investments have been

disclosed in note 8 to these financial statements.

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up

rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up rate risk arises from mismatching of financial assets

and liabilities that mature or repaid in a given period. The Company manages this mismatch

through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be

adjusted. At the reporting date, the interest / mark-up rate profile of the Company's

significant interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments was as follows:

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rate will not effect fair value of fixed rate

financial instrument. For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments, a

hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have

impacted profit for the year by Rs.92 thousand (2019: Rs.414 thousand) based on

assumption that all other variables will remain constant. It is assumed that the changes occur

immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument containing interest rate risk.

Variations in market interest rates could produce significant changes at the time of early

repayments. For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected above.

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or

currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual

financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instrument traded in

the market. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk. The Company is exposed

to equity price risk that arises as a result of changes in the levels of Pakistan Stock Exchange-

Index and the value of individual shares.

Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective is to manage and control

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimising the return. The market

risks associated with the Company's business activities are interest / mark-up rate risk, price

risk and currency risk.

2020 2019 2020 2019

Fixed rate financial instruments

Financial assets

Investments - Pakistan Investment Bonds 7.75 to 12.00 7.00 to 12.00 55,362 54,680

Floating rate financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank deposits 11.57 to 5.58 8.42 to 11.57 9,208 41,442

Effective interest rate

 Percentage
Rupees in thousand



70THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 

d) Currency risk

2020 2019

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Outstanding claims including IBNR 35,472 35,375

Insurance/ reinsurance payables 41,059 39,627

Other creditors and accruals 7,069 6,164

Unclaimed dividends 555 555

           84,155          81,721 

As the Company is only exposed to price risk for investments classified in the available-for-

sale and at fair value through profit or loss categories, a 10% increase / decrease in share /

unit prices at the year-end would have increased / decreased profit before tax for the year as

at December 31, 2020 by Rs.13.499 million (2019: Rs.13.074 million).

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to

changes in foreign currency rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables

and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. At the reporting date, the

Company does not have assets or liabilities, which are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Rupees in thousand

2020
Held to 

maturity

Available-

for-sale

At fair value 

through profit 

or loss

Bank accounts, 

deposits, loans 

and other 

receivables

Total

of financial position

Bank balances 0 0 0 9,208 9,208

Investments in equity securities 0 615

          

134,372 0 134,987

Investments in debt securities 55,362

  

0 0 0 55,362

Insurance / reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 122,451 122,451

Reinsurance and other recoveries 
against outstanding claims 0 0 0 26,175 26,175

Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 5,250 5,250

55,362

  

615 134,372 163,084 353,433

Financial assets as per statement - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Investments

2019
Held to 

maturity

Available-

for-sale

At fair value 

through profit or 

loss

Bank accounts, 

deposits, loans 

and other 

receivables

Total

Bank balances 0 0 0 46,343 46,343

Investments in equity securities 0 569 130,167 0 130,736

Investments in debt securities 54,680 0 0 0 54,680

Insurance / reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 122,692 122,692

Reinsurance and other recoveries 
against outstanding claims 0 0 0 26,203 26,203

Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 3,224 3,224

54,680 569 130,167 198,462 383,878

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Investments
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37. Insurance risk

a) Concentration of insurance risk

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the

outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contracts.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct

obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded

insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under

such reinsurance agreements. The Company’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such

that it is neither dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company

substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. Reinsurance policies are

written with approved reinsurers on either a proportionate basis or non-proportionate basis.

The reinsurers, carefully selected and approved, are dispersed over several geographical

regions.

Experience shows that larger is the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, smaller the

relative variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio

is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The

Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance

risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population

of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Company principally issues the general insurance contracts e.g. marine & transport, fire

& property damage, motor and others. Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover

twelve months duration. For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from

accidental fire, atmospheric disaster and terrorist activities. Insurance contracts at times also

cover risk for single incident that exposes the Company to multiple insurance risks.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and

benefit payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the

frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of

long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient

reserves are available to cover these liabilities. The above risk exposure is mitigated by

diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas.

Risk surveys are carried-out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards

associated primarily with the commercial / industrial occupation of the insured. Details

regarding the fire separation / segregation with respect to the manufacturing processes,

storage, utilities, etc. are extracted from the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details are

formed part of the reports which are made available to the underwriters / reinsurers for their

evaluation. Reference is made to the standard construction specifications laid down by IAP

(Insurance Association of Pakistan). For fire & property risk a particular building and

neighbouring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as

a single location. For earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location.

Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage are considered as a

single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration

of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance

policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable to the Company.

To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical

spread of risk is of extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are

significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical location,

the most important of which is risk survey.

The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of

underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Further,

strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of

claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims and

similar procedures are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The

Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in

order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact

the Company.

A risk management solution is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in catastrophic

scenarios. It provides a way to better visualize the risk exposure to the Company, which

determines the appropriate amount of reinsurance coverage to protect the business portfolio.
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b) Reinsurance risk

c) Neutral assumptions for claims estimation

In compliance with the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly

submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarised below by reference to liabilities:

The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of

reinsurance programs. The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total

premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserves and premium deficiency reserves)

would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the

unexpired policies as of the reporting date. 

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claims

reserve is intended to result in neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The

nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any

particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a

separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information available

from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimates are

reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the

estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, in which case

information about the claim event is available. IBNR provisions are recognised by the

Company based on the valuation carried-out by the Actuary on yearly basis in persuance of

SEPC Circular No. 09 of 2016.

To minimise its exposure to any possible losses from reinsurers' insolvencies, the Company

evaluates the financial condition of the reinsurers, their rating and monitors concentrations of

credit risk arising from the respective geographic regions, activities or economic

characteristics of the reinsurers.

As per general practice of the insurance industry, in order to minimise financial exposure

arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into

agreements with other companies for reinsurance purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements 

provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to

potential losses arising from sizeable risk and provide additional underwriting capacity, which

also constitutes towards the growth of premium. A significant portion of the reinsurance is

effected under treaty, facultative and also under excess of loss reinsurance contracts to

protect the Company's exposure towards catastrophic losses.

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Fire 49,787,687 41,337,050 40,173,685

 

33,227,085

  

9,614,002 8,109,965

Marine 13,883,820 24,209,005 8,098,432

   

13,396,487

  

5,785,388 10,812,518-
Motor 6,887,578 4,517,930 65,432

        

71,816

         

6,822,146 4,446,114-
Others 1,612,184 2,964,441 993,750

      

1,412,074

    

618,434 1,552,367

72,171,269 73,028,426 49,331,299

 

48,107,462

  

22,839,970 24,920,964

Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
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d) Sensitivity analysis

38. Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of

variables, which complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company considers that the

liability for insurance claims recognised in the statement of financial position is adequate.

However, actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any

significant impact of changes in market conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results

of sensitivity testing are set-out below, of claims net of reinsurance showing the impact on

underwiting results and equity, net of reinsurance:

2020 2019 2020 2019

Fire 306 257 217 194 

Marine (1) 68 (1) 68 

Motor 2,964 2,058 2,104 1,448 

Others 309 7 219 (57)

3,578 2,390 2,539 1,653 

Net impact of increase / decrease in average 

claim by 10 % on 

Underwriting result Shareholders' equity

 - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - -

 Maturity 

upto one 

year 

 Maturity 

after one 

year 

 Sub-             

total 

 Maturity 

upto one 

year 

 Maturity 

after one 

year 

 Sub-             

total 

Financial assets on statement of financial position

Investments in equity securities 0 0 0 134,987 0 134,987 134,987

Investments in debt securities 11,195 44,167 55,362 0 0 0 55,362

Loans and other receivables 0 0 0 5,250 0 5,250 5,250

Insurance/ reinsurance receivables 0 0 0 122,451 0 122,451 122,451

Reinsurance and other recoveries
  against outstanding claims 0 0 0 26,175 0 26,175 26,175

Bank balances 6,556 0 6,556 2,652 0 2,652 9,208

17,751 44,167 61,918 291,515 0 291,515 353,433

Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 17,751 44,167 61,918 291,515 0 291,515 353,433

Financial liabilities on statement of financial position

Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 0 0 0          35,472 0 35,472 35,472

Insurance/ reinsurance payables 0 0 0          41,059 0 41,059 41,059

Other creditors and accruals 0 0 0 7,069 0 7,069 7,069

Unclaimed dividends 0 0 0 555 0 555 555

0 0 0 84,155 0 84,155 84,155 

Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 84,155 0 84,155 84,155

On statement of financial position gap 17,751 44,167 61,918 207,360 0 207,360 269,278

Off statement of financial position gap 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2020
Interest / mark-up bearing Non interest / mark-up bearing

Total

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees  in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
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39. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily

and regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or

regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arm's length basis.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,

unadjusted) inputs (Level 3) Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are

recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the changes have occurred.

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a going concern

and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to

undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the company to classify fair value measurements

and fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the

measurements of fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

 Maturity 

upto one 

year 

 Maturity 

after one 

year 

 Sub-             

total 

 Maturity 

upto one 

year 

 Maturity 

after one 

year 

 Sub-             

total 

Financial assets on statement of financial position

Investments in equity securities 0 0 0     130,736 0     130,736  130,736 

Investments in debt securities       10,883 43,797       54,680 0 0 0    54,680 

Loans and other receivables 0 0 0         3,224 0         3,224      3,224 

Insurance/ reinsurance receivables 0 0 0     122,692 0     122,692  122,692 

Reinsurance and other recoveries
  against outstanding claims 0 0 0       26,203 0       26,203    26,203 

Bank balances       41,442 0       41,442         4,901 0         4,901    46,343 

52,325 43,797 96,122 287,756 0 287,756 383,878

Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 52,325 43,797 96,122 287,756 0 287,756 383,878

Financial liabilities on statement of financial position

Outstanding claims (including IBNR) 0 0 0 35,375 0 35,375 35,375

Insurance/ reinsurance payables 0 0 0 39,627 0 39,627 39,627

Other creditors and accruals 0 0 0 6,164 0 6,164 6,164

Unclaimed dividends 0 0 0 555 0 555 555
 `0 0 0 81,721 0 81,721 81,721

Off statement of financial position 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 81,721 0 81,721 81,721

On statement of financial position gap 52,325 43,797 96,122 206,035 0 206,035 302,157

Off statement of financial position gap 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2019
Interest / mark-up bearing Non interest / mark-up bearing

Total

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in thousand - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 



Note Available for 

sale / FVTPL

Held to 

maturity

Other 

financial 

assets

Cash and 

cash 

equivalents

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity share - Qouted 8.1 81 - - - - 81 81 - - 81

Mutual funds - JS Growth fund * 8.1 534 - - - - 534 - - - -

Mutual funds * 8.2 134,372 - - - - 134,372 - - - -

Debt securities * 9 - 55,362 - - - 55,362 - - - -

Loans and other receivables * 10 - - 35,063 - - 35,063 - - - -

Insurance / reinsurance receivables * 11 - - 122,451 - - 122,451 - - - -
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding 

claims * 24 - - 26,175 - - 26,175 - - - -

Prepayments * 14 - - 22,507 - - 22,507 - - - -

Cash and bank * 15 - - - 9,332 - 9,332 - - - -

134,987 55,362 206,196 9,332 - 405,877 81 - - 81

Underwriting provisions:

Outstanding claims (including IBNR) * 24 - - - - 35,472

Long term deposits * 19 - - - - 62

Insurance / reinsurance payables * 20 - - - - 41,059

Unclaimed dividende * - - - - 555

Other creditors and accruals * 21 - - - - 12,148

- - - - 89,296

31 December, 2020

--------------------------- Rupees in thousand --------------------------------
Financial assets - measured at fair value

Financial assets - not measured at fair value

Financial liabilities - not measured at fair value

Carrying value Fair value hierarchy 

Particulars
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* The fair value of these financial assets are not significantly different from their carrying amount since

these assets are either short term in nature or are frequently repriced to market rate.
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2020 2019

Investments in associates 773,479 315,957

40. Capital risk management

* 'The fair value of these financial assets are not significantly different from their carrying

amounts since these assets are either short 'term in nature or are frequently repriced to

market rate.

Financial asset - Measured 

at fair value using level 1

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern and meet the regulatory, solvency and paid-up capital

requirements so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes

adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders

or issue new shares.

Rupees in thousand

Fair value of investments in associates using level 1 for the year eded is as follows:

Note Available for 

sale / FVTPL

Held to 

maturity

Other 

financial 

assets

Cash and 

cash 

equivalents

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity share - Qouted 8.1 83 - - - - 83 83 - - 83

Mutual funds - JS Growth fund * 8.1 486 - - - - 486 - - - -

Mutual funds * 8.2 130,167 - - - - 130,167 - - - -

Debt securities * 9 - 54,680

 

-

              

-

            

- 54,680 - - - -

Loans and other receivables * 10 - -

 

32,844

         

-

            

- 32,844 - - - -

Insurance / reinsurance receivables * 11 - -

 

122,692

       

-

            

- 122,692 - - - -
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding 

claims * 24 - -

 

26,203

         

-

            

- 26,203 - - - -

Prepaymenst * 14 - -

 

6,796

           

-

             

- 6,796 - - - -

Cash and bank* 15 - - - 18,550 - 18,550 - - - -

130,736 54,680 188,535 18,550 - 392,501 83 - - 83

Underwriting provisions:

Outstanding claims (including IBNR)* 24 - - - - 35,375

Long term deposits* 19 - - - - 388

Insurance / reinsurance payables* 20 - - - - 39,627

Unclaimed dividende * - - - - 555

Other creditors and accruals * 21 - - - - 11,851

- - - - 87,796

Carrying value Fair value hierarchy 

Financial liabilities - not measured at fair value

31 December, 2019

--------------------------- Rupees in thousand --------------------------------

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Financial assets - not measured at fair value

Particulars
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41. Statement of solvency
Assets as disclosed in the statement of 

financial position as at December 31, 2020

Property and equipment        188,466 
Investment property          30,660 
Investments in associates        284,720 
Investments
   - equity securities        134,987 
   - debt securities          55,362 
Loans and other receivables          35,063 
Insurance / reinsurance receivables        122,451 
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims          26,175 
Deferred commission expense            9,967 

Deferred taxation          57,007 

Taxation - payments less provisions            8,811 
Prepayments          22,507 
Cash and bank balances            9,332 

Total Assets (A)        985,508 

In-admissible assets as per the following applicable clauses

of section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (the Ordinance)

(d)            3,624 
(g)        284,845 
(j)          57,007 
(n) & (o)          32,424 
(u)(i)            5,833 
(u)(ii)            2,229 
(u)(iii)               715 
(v)          64,644 

Total in-admissible assets (B)        451,321 

Total admissible assets (C = A - B)        534,187 

Liabilities as disclosed in the statement of 
financial position as at December 31, 2020

Underwriting provisions

Outstanding claims including IBNR 35,472

Unearned premium reserves          62,720 
Unearned reinsurance commission            3,791 
Long term deposits                 62 
Insurance / reinsurance payables          41,059 
Unclaimed dividends               555 
Other creditors and accruals          12,148 

Total Liabilities (D)        155,807 

Total net admissible assets (E = C - D)        378,380 

Minimum solvency requirement (higher of the following)

Method A - under section 36(3)(a) of the Ordinance          150,000 

Method B - under section 36(3)(b) of the Ordinance            13,440 

Method C - under section 36(3)(c) of the Ordinance            10,075 150,000

Excess of net admissible assets over minimum requirements        228,380 

('Rupees in 

thousand)
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42. Number of employees 2020 2019

Number of employees as at December 31, 26 25

Average number of employees during the year 26 26

43. Provident Fund relating disclosures

44. Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on financial statements

45.

46. Date of authorisation for issue

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the

purpose of comparison; however, no material re-arrangements and reclassifications have

been made in these financial statements.

The Company, during the perceding year, had established employees provident fund and

duly recognised by the FBR. The following information is based on the un-audited financial

statements of the provident fund for the period ended December 31, 2020:

Corresponding figures

These financial statements were authorised for issue on April 02, 2021 by the board of directors

of the Company. 

Investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the requirements

of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

Managemnet has assessed the accounting implications of COVID-19 on these financial

statements, however, according to management's assessment, there is no significant

accounting impact of the effects of COVID-19 on these financial statements.

2020 2019

Size of the fund 8,093 3,518

Cost of investments made 4,900 3,100

Fair value of investments 5,011 3,139

Percentage of investments made 62 89

The break-up of cost of Investments is as follows:

Mutual funds 49 2,400          600 19

Bank deposit - TDR 51 2,500       2,500 81

100 4,900 3,100 100

Rupees in thousand

% of 

investment

% of 

investment

PRINCIPAL OFFICER
Amir RazaRaza Kuli Khan Khattak

CHAIRMAN CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Gohar Ayub Khan Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed

DIRECTOR
Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

DIRECTOR
Ashfaq Ahmed

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON DECEMBER 31ST 2020

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
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From To

284 1  - 100 6,317 0.01

161 101  - 500 46,965 0.09

87 501  - 1000 66,400 0.13

239 1001  - 5000 574,864 1.15

51 5001  - 10000 356,545 0.71

27 10001  - 15000 331,621 0.66

10 15001  - 20000 179,521 0.36

3 20001  - 25000 68,175 0.14

5 25001  - 30000 131,855 0.26

5 30001  - 35000 164,418 0.33

2 35001  - 40000 73,431 0.15

3 40001  - 45000 124,602 0.25

2 45001  - 50000 100,000 0.20

1 55001  - 60000 60,000 0.12

1 75001  - 80000 75,728 0.15

3 80001  - 85000 248,576 0.50

2 90001  - 95000 186,150 0.37

1 95001  - 100000 96,181 0.19

2 105001  - 110000 216,086 0.43

1 155001  - 160000 158,136 0.32

1 175001  - 180000 177,028 0.35

1 215001  - 220000 215,500 0.43

1 275001  - 280000 276,226 0.55

2 295001  - 300000 597,861 1.20

1 300001  - 305000 300,086 0.60

1 400001  - 405000 403,500 0.81

1 415001  - 420000 415,237 0.83

1 610001  - 615000 613,203 1.23

1 750001  - 755000 754,000 1.51

1 42980001  - 42985000 42,981,788 85.96

901 50,000,000 100.00

Number of 

ShareHolders

Shareholdings Total Number of 

Share Held

Percentage of 

Total Capital

Sr. # Categories
No. of 

Shareholders
Shares Held Percentage

1 Executives 2 3,603 0.0072

2 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children 7 1,326,102 2.6522

3 Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties 1 42,981,788 85.9636

4 NIT and ICP 1 1,363 0.0027

5 Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations 1 1,359 0.0027

6 Insurance Companies 1 22,243 0.0445

7 General Public (Local) 880 4,918,885 9.8378

8 Others 8 744,657 1.4893

TOTAL: 901 50,000,000 100.0000
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DETAILED CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS ON DECEMBER 31ST, 2020
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Sr. # Name
Shares Held Percentage 

of Capital

1 Mr. Amir Raza 3,003 0.0060

2 Mr. Abdul Waheed Chaudhry 600 0.0012

Running Total: 3,603 0.0072

1 Lt. Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 297,861 0.5957

2 Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan 40,234 0.0805

3 Mr. Raza Kuli Khan Khattak 613,203 1.2264

4 Mr. Ahmed Kuli Khan Khattak 276,226 0.5525

5 Mrs. Shahnaz Sajjad Ahmed 93,075 0.1862

6 Mr. Muhammad Imran Malik 3,003 0.0060

7 Mr. Haroon Ahmed Zuberi 2,500 0.0050

Running Total: 1,326,102
   

2.6522

1 Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited 42,981,788 85.9636

Running Total: 42,981,788 85.9636

1 Investment Corporation of Pakistan, 1,363 0.0027

Running Total: 1,363 0.0027

1 Shirazi Investment (pvt) Limited, 1,359 0.0027

Running Total: 1,359 0.0027

1 Gulf Insurance Co  ltd, 22,243 0.0445

Running Total: 22,243 0.0445

General Public (Local) 4,918,885 9.8378

1 AKD Securities Limited 403,500 0.8070

2 Fikrees (Private) Limited 2,500 0.0050

3 Sarfraz Mahmood (Private) Ltd. 1,000 0.0020

4 Maple Leaf Capital Limited 1 0.0000

5 Deputy Administrator Abandoned Properties Organization 37,431 0.0749

6 Cliktrade Limited 40 0.0001

7 Salim Sozer Securities (Pvt.) Ltd. 300,086 0.6002

8 Millwala Sons (Private) Limited 99 0.0002

Running Total: 744,657 1.4893

Grand Total: 50,000,000 100.0000

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

1 Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited 42,981,788 85.9636

Insurance Companies

Others

Executives

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouse and minor children

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

NIT and ICP

Banks, Development Financial Instituations, Non Banking Financial Instituations
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Name Designation Telephone Office Fax No.

Mr. Gohar Ayub Khan Chief Executive Officer 042-37311666 042-37230326

Mr. Amir Raza Principal Officer 042-37355579 042-37230326

Mr. Ashfaq Ahmed

Mr. Abdul Waheed Chaudhry 

Mr. Muhammad Alyas

Mr. Aftab Rashid

Chief Financial Officer

Head of Internal Audit

Compliance Officer & Head of Re-insurance

Chief Information Security Officer & Head of Grievance Dept.

042-37243168

042-37355426

042-37322813

042-37355426

042-37238616

042-37230326

042-37230326

042-37230326

Miss. Bushra Hina Mushtaq Head of Underwriting & Risk Management 042-37311608 042-37230326

042-37230326

042-37230326

HEAD OFFICE EXECUTIVE / DEPARTMENTAL HEAD

1 117 Principal Office,
Karachi

3rd Floor Nelson 
Chamber I.I Chundrigar
Road, Karachi

0334-3360326 0334-3360326

BRANCHES

Sr.
No.

Br_Code Branch Address Ph No. Fax No.
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Mr. Liaqat Ali Shaukat Company Secretary 

042-37355426 042-37230326Mr. Muhammad Rashid Ashraf Head of Claims

Mr. Abdul Rashid Senior Manager Co-insurance 042-37355426 042-37230326



82

Investor's Awareness

As per direction of SECP vide their S.R.O. 924 (1)/2015 dated September 09, 2015 we are 
pleased to incorporate the following informational message on 'JumaPunji ' for investor's 
awareness in Annual Report of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017.

THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 
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I / We

being a member(s) of The

Universal Insurance Company Limited and holder of

as per Registered Folio No./CDC Participation ID and Account

No.

or failing him / her

of

who is

also member of The Universal Insurance Company Limited vide Registered Folio

No./CDC Participant’s ID and Account No.

to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 61st Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held on Friday 30th April, 2021 at 10:30 a.m and any adjournment

thereof.

Signed this

IMPORTANT:

1.

office The Universal Insurance Company Limited, 63-Shahrah-e-Quaid-e-Azam, Lahore

not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. 

3. CDC Shareholders and their proxies must attach an attested photocopy of their
Computerized National identity Card or Passport with this Proxy Form.

This form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Company’s Registered 

A Proxy should also be a member of the Company.

of

Ordinary Shares

hereby appoint of

as may / our proxy

day of 2021.

Name

CNIC No.:

Address

Signature

Name

CNIC No.:

Address

Signature

AFFIX

REVENUE

STAMP

RS. 50/-

FORM OF PROXY

Witness:

Signature

THE UNIVERSAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED SECURITY SERVICE PROSPERITY 
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